
  Meeting Agenda 
The Provincetown Board of Selectmen will hold a public meeting on Monday, 
June 22, 2015, at 6:00 p.m. in Judge Welsh Room, Town Hall, 260 Commercial Street, 
Provincetown, MA 02657. 
 
Consent Agenda – Approval without objection required for the following items: 

A. Parade Permit Application submitted by Sherry Brec on behalf of the CASAS (Carrie 
A. Seamen Animal Shelter) Charity Walk/Pet Parade on Sunday, September 27, 
2015, from 2pm to 3pm. 

B. Bond Anticipation Note #1106 – Dan Hoort – Approval Required. 
C. Treasurer’s Transfer – Beautification Gift Fund- Invoice from Garden Renovations in 

the amount of $495.20 to pay for Planting Materials. 
 

1.  Public Hearings - Votes may be taken on the following items: 
 

2. Public Statements – Five minutes maximum. Selectmen do not respond to Public 
 Statements. 
 
3. Selectmen’s Statements – Initial comments from the Selectmen.  Discussion dependent 
 - votes may be taken. 
 
4.   Joint meeting / Presentations - Votes may be taken on the following items: 

A. Presentation by Dan Sullivan regarding the FY2014 Annual Financial Audit and 
Clifton Larson Allen Management Letter. 

B. Joint Meeting with Harbor Committee – Regulation Changes and Harbor Access Gift 
Fund for Kayak Racks. 

 
5.   Appointments - Votes may be taken on the following items: 

A. Appointments as Members to the Economic Development Committee (Bryan 
Armstrong, Regina Cassidy, Karen Cappotto, Jeffrey Krainess, Michael Miller, and 
Steven Latasa-Nicks). 

B. Appointment of Robert Costa to fill the Provincetown Chamber of Commerce 
Representative Seat on the VSB, with a term to end June 30, 2018. 

C. Reappointments by BOS to Committees for End of Fiscal Year 2015, with terms to 
expire on June 30, 2018.  

 
6.   Requests - Votes may be taken on the following items:   

A. Animal Control Officer Ruthann Cowing - Update Regarding the Death of a Dog at 
the Pilgrim Bark Park. 

B. Conwell Street Bike Trail Improvements, Design, Engineering, and Construction 
Contract with Environmental Partners Group- DPW Deputy Director Eric Larsen. 
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7.   Town Manager / Assistant Town Manager - Votes may be taken on the following items: 
A. Approval of Police Chief Contract. 
B. Discussion of Draft Town-wide Goals for FY 2016.  
C. Board of Selectmen Rules of Procedure- Annual Review and Approval. 
D. Town Manager Search Matters. 
E. Other – Other matters that may legally come before the Board not known at the time 

of posting – votes may be taken. 
 

8.   Minutes – Approve minutes of previous meetings.  Vote may be taken. 
 
9.  Closing Statements/Administrative Updates - Closing comments from the Selectmen.          

Discussion dependent, motions may be made, votes may be taken 
A. Reading of Proclamations previously approved by the BOS on June 8, 2015: 

Proclamation to Declare June 15, 2015, as David W. Dunlap Day – Author of 
Building Provincetown by Historical Commission; Proclamation to Declare June 18, 
2015, as Josephine & Salvatore Del Deo Day (Seniors of the Year), and 
Proclamation to Congratulate David McGlothin, as being named the Massachusetts 
2015 History Teacher of the Year. 

B. Letters of Thanks to Members of Boards and Committees not Being Reappointed or 
with Terms Ending for Fiscal Year 2015. 
 
 
Posted: www.provincetown-ma.gov  6/18/15  2:30 pm dj 



  

Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST 

Monday, June 22, 2015 

CONSENT AGENDA 
Approval required for the following items: 
 Requested by:  BOS Chair Tom Donegan              Action Sought: Approval 

Proposed Motion(s) 

MOVE that the Board of Selectmen vote to approve items listed on the consent 
agenda as submitted. 
 

Consent Agenda – Approval without objection required for the following items: 
A. Parade Permit Application submitted by Sherry Brec on behalf of the CASAS (Carrie 

A. Seamen Animal Shelter) Charity Walk/Pet Parade on Sunday, September 27, 
2015, from 2pm to 3pm. 

B. Bond Anticipation Note #1106 – Treasurer Connie Boulos – Dan Hoort approval 
required. 

C. Treasurer’s Transfer – Beautification Commission to pay invoice in the amount of 
$495.20 for Garden Renovations. 
 

 
 
 

Additional Information 

See attached documents. 

Board Action 

Motion Second Yea Nay Abstain Disposition 
      

 

00 



Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST 

Monday, June 22, 2015 

PARADE PERMIT REQUEST 
CASAS Charity Walk/Pet Parade 
Requested by: Sherry Brec  Action Sought: Approval  

Proposed Motion(s) 

MOVE that the Board of Selectmen vote to approve the Parade Permit Application 
submitted by Sherry Brec, P.O. Box 1826, Provincetown, MA 02657, on behalf of the 
CASAS (Carrie A. Seamen Animal Shelter) Charity Walk/Pet Parade on Sunday, 
September 27, 2015, from 2pm to 3pm. 
 

 

 

 

 

Additional Information 

See attached application.  Route will begin at Saint Mary’s of the Harbor Church complex on 
Commercial Street and end at the Pied Piper Bar, 199 Commercial Street.  This is an annual 
event. 
 

Board Action   

Motion Second Yea Nay Abstain Disposition 

      

 
 
 ________________________________________________________________________ 

00A 











Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
Monday, June 22, 2015 

Bond Anticipation Note #1106 
Requested by:  Connie Boulos, Treasurer  06/11/2015                      Action Sought: Approval 

Proposed Motion(s) 

MOVE that the Board of Selectmen vote to issue Bond Anticipation Note #1106 in the amount of 
$1,332,538 dated June 30, 2015 at 0.60% ($8,015.40) interest payable at maturity to Cape Cod Five 
Cents Savings Bank due June 30, 2016.    
 
BOND ANTICIPATION NOTE ~ BAN #1106 
From the April 2, 2012 Annual Town Meeting: 
Article #5-11  -Town Emergency Shelter   $     11,836.00 
 
From the April 1, 2013 Annual Town Meeting: 
Article #11-9  -Commercial St Maintenance #2  $     89,540.00 
 
From the April 1, 2013 Special Town Meeting: 
Article #11    -Macmillan Pier Floating Docks  $     45,622.00 
 
From the April 7, 2014 Annual Town Meeting: 
Article #11-12  -Roadway Paving Plan    $   165,540.00 
 
From the April 7, 2014 Annual Town Meeting: 
Article #11-13  -Commercial St Paving   $     25,000.00 
 
From the November 21, 2013 Special Town Meeting: 
Article #8  -Truro Kelly Property Purchase  $   280,000.00 
 
From the April 4, 2011 Special Town Meeting: 
Article #6  -WWEF Optimization/Expansion  $   465,000.00 
 
From the April 2, 2012 Special Town Meeting: 
Article #5  -WW Optimization/Expansion  $   250,000.00 
 
TOTAL BAN #1106                                   $ 1,332,538.00 

Additional Information 

Issue of #1106:     Interest Rate =$1,332,538.00 x .60%/365 x 366 = $8,015.40 

Board Action 

Motion Second Yea Nay Abstain Disposition 
      

 
 

00B 





















  

Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST 

Monday, June 22, 2015 

TREASURER’S TRANSFERS 
Beautification Gift Fund  
 Requested by:  Treasurer Constance Boulos, 06/22/15   Action Sought: Approval 

Proposed Motion(s) 

MOVE that the Board of Selectmen vote, as Commissioners of the Town of 
Provincetown Gift Funds, pursuant to MGL C44 § 53A, to approve the use of $495.20 
from the  Beautification Gift Fund  to pay for the attached invoice(s). 
 

 

 

 

 

Additional Information 

Attached is the authorized Voucher(s) to Pay this request totaling $495.20 from the 

Beautification Gift Fund leaving a balance of $3,729.55. 

 
 
 
 
 

Board Action 

Motion Second Yea Nay Abstain Disposition 
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              TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN 
 
 

REQUEST FOR TRANSFER OF FUNDS 
 
 
 
Date: June 22, 2015 
   
To: Constance Boulos, Treasurer 
 
From: Board of Selectmen 
  

As Commissioners of the Town of Provincetown Gift Funds, permission is 
hereby granted to you, the Treasurer of the Town of Provincetown, to 
approve the use of $495.20 from the Beautification Gift Fund for the 
payment of the attached invoice(s): 

  
$      495.20  Garden Renovations 

    Plant Material West Vine Island 
     

     $      495.20  TOTAL 
 

 
                   The Honorable Board of Selectmen: 
 
 
 

   
_______________________________              _____________________________ 
Thomas N Donegan, Chair           Erik Yingling, Vice Chair 

 
 

 
_______________________________              _____________________________          

Cheryl Andrews, Selectman    Raphael Richter, Selectman 
 
       
          
_______________________________                       
Robert Anthony, Selectman 











  

 
Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST 

Monday, June 22, 2015 

PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Requested by:  Board of Selectmen              Action Sought: Public Hearing/Discussion 

Proposed Motion(s) 

None 
                                                      

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Additional Information 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Action 

Motion Second In favor Opposed Disposition 

     

 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 
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Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST 

Monday, June 22, 2015 

PUBLIC STATEMENTS 
  Requested by:  Board of Selectmen                                      Action Sought:  Open    

Proposed Motion(s) 

 Five minutes maximum.  Selectmen do not respond during Public Statements. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Additional Information 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Action  

Motion Second Yea Nay Abstain Disposition 

      

 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 
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Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST 

Monday, June 22, 2015   

SELECTMEN’S STATEMENTS  
 Requested by:  Acting Town Manager David Gardner              Action Sought:  Discussion 

Proposed Motion(s)  

  Motions may be made and votes may be taken. 

Robert Anthony 

Raphael Richter 

Erik Yingling 

Cheryl Andrews 

Tom Donegan 

       

Additional Information 

 
 
 
 

Board Action   

Motion Second Yea Nay Abstain Disposition 

      

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
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Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST 

Monday, June 22, 2015  

PRESENTATION BY DAN SULLIVAN 
FY2014 Annual Financial Audit & Clifton Larson Allen Management Letter 
Requested by: Finance Director Dan Hoort                           Action Sought: Review 

Proposed Motion(s) 

 
Discussion dependent – votes may be taken. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Additional Information 

 
See attached documents. 
 
 
 
 

Board Action 

Motion Second In favor Opposed Disposition 

     

 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

 
 
 
To the Honorable Board of Selectmen 
Provincetown, Massachusetts 
 
 
Report on the Financial Statements 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of 
Provincetown, Massachusetts, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, and the related notes to the 
financial statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements of the Town of 
Provincetown, Massachusetts’ primary government as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 
 
Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.  Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinion. 
 

(1) An independent member of Nexia International



Board of Selectmen 
Town of Provincetown, Massachusetts 
 

Basis for Adverse Opinion on the Discretely Presented Component Unit 
 
The financial statements referred to above do not include financial data for the Town’s legally separate 
component unit, the Provincetown Public Pier Corporation.  Accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United State of America require financial data for the Town’s legally separate component unit to be 
reported with the financial data of the Town’s primary government, unless the Town also issues financial 
statements for the financial reporting entity that include the financial data for the component unit. The 
Town has not issued such reporting entity financial statements. The amount by which this departure 
from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States would affect the assets, liabilities, net 
position, revenues, and expenses of the discretely presented component unit has not been determined. 
 
Adverse Opinion 
 
In our opinion, because of the significance of the matter discussed in the “Basis for Adverse Opinion on 
the Discretely Presented Component Unit” paragraph, the financial statements referred to above do not 
present fairly the financial position of the discretely presented component unit of the Town of 
Provincetown, as of June 30, 2014, or the changes in financial position thereof for the year then ended 
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.  
 
Unmodified Opinions 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Provincetown, Massachusetts, as of June 
30, 2014, and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for 
the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 
 
Other Matters 
 
Required Supplementary Information 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis (located on pages 4 through 11) and budgetary comparison and certain 
pension and other postemployment benefits information (located on pages 59 through 63) be presented 
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial 
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an 
essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required 
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the 
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our 
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic 
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information 
because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or 
provide any assurance. 
 

(2) 



Board of Selectmen 
Town of Provincetown, Massachusetts 

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 20, 
2015 on our consideration of the Town of Provincetown, Massachusetts’ internal control over financial 
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an 
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering 
the Town of Provincetown, Massachusetts’ internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
Burlington, Massachusetts 
March 20, 2015 

(3) 



TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2014 

As management of the Town of Provincetown, Massachusetts (Town), we offer readers of these 
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the Town’s financial activities for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2014.   

Financial Highlights 

• The assets of the Town exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal year by
$100,143,763 (net position).  The Town’s governmental activities had negative unrestricted net 
position of ($4,542,282) and its business-type activities had positive unrestricted net position of 
$27,540,727. 

• The Town’s total net position increased by $5,709,304.

• At the end of the fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund totaled $3,117,942, or
12.2 percent of total general fund revenues and other financing sources. 

• The Town’s total bonded debt increased by $4,168,098 during the fiscal year. $8,318,910 of new
debt was issued. 

Overview of the Basic Financial Statements 

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the basic financial statements, 
which consists of the following three components: 

1. Government-wide financial statements
2. Fund financial statements
3. Notes to the basic financial statements.

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 

Government-wide financial statements 

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the 
Town’s finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business. 

The statement of net position presents information on all of the Town’s non-fiduciary assets and 
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position.  Over time, increases or 
decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is 
improving or deteriorating. 

The statement of activities presents information showing how the government’s net position changed 
during the most recent fiscal year.  All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying 
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows.  Thus, revenues 
and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future 
fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes, earned but unused vacation leave, etc.). 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2014 

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are principally 
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that 
are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges 
(business-type activities). Governmental activities include general government, public safety, education, 
public works, health and human services and culture and recreation.  Business-type activities include 
water and wastewater operations. 

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 12-14 of this report. 

Fund financial statements 

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been 
segregated for specific activities or objectives.  The Town, like other state and local governments, uses 
fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal requirements.  All of 
the funds can be divided into the following categories and are described below: 

1. Governmental funds
2. Proprietary funds
3. Fiduciary funds

Governmental Funds 
Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental 
activities in the government-wide financial statements.  However, unlike the government-wide financial 
statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of 
expendable resources, as well as on balances of expendable resources available at the end of the fiscal 
year.  Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s near-term financing requirements. 

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial 
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar 
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.  By 
doing so, readers may better understand the long-term effect of the government’s near-term financing 
decisions.  Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of 
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this 
comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities. 

The Town maintains 206 individual governmental funds.  Information is presented separately in the 
governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures, 
and changes in fund balances for the general fund, which is considered to be a major fund.  Data from 
the other governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation titled nonmajor 
governmental funds.   

The basic governmental funds financial statements can be found on pages 15-18 of this report. 

Proprietary Funds 
Enterprise funds are used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the 
government-wide financial statements.  The Town uses enterprise funds to account for its water and 
wastewater operations, both of which are considered to be major funds.  

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 19-22 of this report. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2014 

Fiduciary Funds  
Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government. 
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of 
those funds are not available to support the Town’s programs.  The accounting used for fiduciary funds 
is similar to that used for proprietary funds. 

Private-purpose trust funds and agency funds are reported and combined into a single, aggregate 
presentation in the fiduciary fund financial statements under the captions “private purpose trust funds” 
and “agency funds”, respectively.   

The basic fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 23-24 of this report. 

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements  
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in 
the government-wide and fund financial statements.  The notes to the financial statements can be found 
on pages 25-57 of this report. 

Required Supplementary Information 
In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain 
required supplementary information.  Presented in this information are the budget comparisons for the 
general fund, and certain pension and other post employment benefits information, which can be found 
on pages 59-63. 

Government-Wide Financial Analysis 
The following tables present current and prior year data on the government-wide financial statements. 

Net Position 
As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s financial 
position.  The Town’s assets exceeded liabilities by $100,143,763 at the close of the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2014 and are summarized as follows: 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2014 

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Assets

Current assets…………………………$ 14,447,422     $ 14,882,606   $ 11,123,207     $ 10,150,468   $ 25,570,629   $ 25,033,074     
Noncurrent assets (excluding

capital assets)…………………… 583,802      579,986    19,995,325     21,627,652   20,579,127   22,207,638     
Capital assets (net)…………………… 57,181,798     54,971,322   66,235,633     60,762,687   123,417,431     115,734,009   

Total assets……………………… 72,213,022     70,433,914   97,354,165     92,540,807   169,567,187     162,974,721   

Liabilities
Current liabilities

(excluding debt)…………………  1,002,120   1,555,342     3,722,161   1,343,462     4,724,281     2,898,804   
Noncurrent liabilities

(excluding debt)…………………  10,360,748     10,060,922   583,606      560,192    10,944,354   10,621,114     
Current debt…………………………… 1,875,106   2,340,762     2,405,354   7,243,703     4,280,460     9,584,465   
Noncurrent debt……………………… 17,269,608     16,711,260   32,204,721     28,724,619   49,474,329   45,435,879     

Total liabilities…………………… 30,507,582     30,668,286   38,915,842     37,871,976   69,423,424   68,540,262     

Net Position
Net investment in capital assets 38,806,147     35,671,174   30,897,596     23,879,365   69,703,743   59,550,539     
Restricted……………………………… 7,441,575   7,250,131     -    916,070    7,441,575     8,166,201   
Unrestricted…………………………… (4,542,282)  (3,155,677)    27,540,727     29,873,396   22,998,445   26,717,719     

Total net position…………………$ 41,705,440     $ 39,765,628   $ 58,438,323     $ 54,668,831   $ 100,143,763     $ 94,434,459     

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

The largest portion of the Town’s net position (70%) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, 
buildings and improvements, machinery, equipment and vehicles, infrastructure, construction in 
progress and intangible assets); less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets.  These 
capital assets are used to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for 
future spending.  Although the investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should 
be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the 
capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities. 

An additional portion of the Town’s net position (7%) represents resources that are subject to external 
restrictions on how they may be used.   

Unrestricted net position of $27,540,727 may be used to support business-type activities.  The Town 
has no unrestricted net position available for the support of governmental activities.  Such resources 
have been consumed with the recognition of other post-employment benefits liabilities. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2014 

Changes in Net Position 
For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, the Town’s total net position increased by $5,709,304, 
compared to an increase of $11,818,924 in the prior fiscal year.  These amounts are summarized as 
follows: 

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Revenues

Program Revenues:
Charges for services…………………………… $ 4,473,602    $ 4,430,569    $ 3,259,168    $ 4,174,485    $ 7,732,770    $ 8,605,054    
Operating grants and contributions…………… 2,480,376    2,729,926    408,348       417,402       2,888,724    3,147,328    
Capital grants and contributions……………… 1,601,698    3,434,099    5,187,456    9,020,779    6,789,154    12,454,878  

General Revenues:
Real estate and personal property taxes……… 17,686,649  16,786,882  -     -     17,686,649  16,786,882  
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes………… 528,708       494,823       -     -     528,708       494,823       
Hotel/motel taxes………………………………… 2,137,177    2,022,874    -     -     2,137,177    2,022,874    
Penalties and interest on taxes………………… 112,487       239,857       -     -     112,487       239,857       
Payments in lieu of taxes……………………… 5,959    6,011    -     -     5,959    6,011    
Community preservation surcharges………… 425,449       404,394       -     -     425,449       404,394       
Landbank taxes………………………………… 486,727       442,831       486,727       442,831       
Grants and contributions not restricted
  to specific programs…………………………… 91,401  87,558  -     -     91,401  87,558  
Unrestricted investment income……………… 6,318    30,669  -     -     6,318    30,669  
Other……………………………………………… -     -     -     -     -     -     

Total revenues……………………………… 30,036,551  31,110,493  8,854,972    13,612,666  38,891,523  44,723,159  

Expenses
General government………………………………… 4,196,683    4,695,252    -     -     4,196,683    4,695,252    
Public safety…………………………………………  7,457,439    7,285,277    -     -     7,457,439    7,285,277    
Education……………………………………………… 7,214,328    7,322,118    -     -     7,214,328    7,322,118    
Public works…………………………………………  5,066,749    5,064,052    -     -     5,066,749    5,064,052    
Airport………………………………………………… 518,356       1,307,127    -     -     518,356       1,307,127    
Health and human services………………………… 1,043,141    938,741       -     -     1,043,141    938,741       
Culture and recreation……………………………… 1,862,379    1,620,162    -     -     1,862,379    1,620,162    
Debt service - interest………………………………  627,446       730,427       -     -     627,446       730,427       
Water Enterprise Fund……………………………… -     -     1,901,719    1,574,826    1,901,719    1,574,826    
Wastewater Enterprise Fund………………………  -     -     2,853,227    2,366,253    2,853,227    2,366,253    

Total expenses………………………………… 28,427,273  28,963,156  4,754,946    3,941,079    33,182,219  32,904,235  

Change in net position before transfers………………… 1,609,278    2,147,337    4,100,026    9,671,587    5,709,304    11,818,924  

Transfers, net……………………………………………… 330,534       376,643       (330,534)      (376,643)      -     -     

Change in net postion…………………………………… 1,939,812    2,523,980    3,769,492    9,294,944    5,709,304    11,818,924  

Net position - beginning of year………………………… 39,765,628  37,241,648  54,668,831  45,373,887  94,434,459  82,615,535  

Net position - end of year…………………………………$ 41,705,440  $ 39,765,628  $ 58,438,323  $ 54,668,831  $ 100,143,763    $ 94,434,459  

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

Governmental activities increased the Town’s net position by $1,939,812.   In the prior year, 
governmental activities increased the Town’s net position by $2,523,980.  The key element of this 
change is the decrease in capital grant revenues and contributions.   

Business-type activities increased the Town’s net position by $3,769,492.  In the prior year, business-
type activities increased the Town’s net position by $9,294,944.  The key element of this change is the 
decrease in capital grant revenues and contributions during the current fiscal year.     
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2014 

Fund Financial Statement Analysis 

As noted earlier, the Town uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-
related legal requirements. 

Governmental funds 
The focus of the governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and 
balances of expendable resources.  Such information is useful in assessing the Town’s financing 
requirements.   

At the end of the current fiscal year, the governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances 
totaling $12,599,609, an increase of $68,769 from the prior year.  Approximately $3,118,000 of fund 
balance represents unassigned fund balance.  The remainder of fund balance includes the following 
constraints: 

 Nonspendable ($356,088)
 Restricted ($7,420,867)
 Committed ($1,615,776)
 Assigned ($88,936)

The general fund is the chief operating fund of the Town.  At the end of the current fiscal year, 
unassigned fund balance of the general fund totaled $3,117,942, while total fund balance was 
$4,543,997.  As a measure of the general fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unassigned 
fund balance and total fund balance to total general fund revenues and other financing sources. 
Unassigned fund balance represents 12.2% of total general fund revenues and other financing sources, 
while total fund balance represents 17.8% of that same amount. 

In fiscal year 2014, the Town’s general fund balance decreased $955,204.  The Town anticipated 
utilizing approximately $3,172,000 of reserves to fund the 2014 budget; however, the Town ultimately 
recognized an approximate $1,073,000 budgetary surplus. 

Proprietary funds  
The Town’s proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide 
financial statements, but in more detail. 

Unrestricted net position of the water and wastewater enterprise funds at the end of the year amounted 
to $1,585,028 and $25,955,699, respectively.  The water and wastewater enterprise funds had 
increases in net position for the year of $2,987,343 and $782,149, respectively.  Other factors 
concerning the finances of these two funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the 
Town’s business-type activities. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2014 

General Fund Budgetary Highlights 
The original general fund budget of $24,002,802 was increased by $1,382,366 (5.8%) during the fiscal 
year.  The following table summarizes the increase: 

Purpose of Increase Amount Funding Source

Purchase of Land with Improvements $ 900,000 Unassigned fund balance
OPEB Trust Fund 440,752 Unassigned fund balance
Provincetown Community Television 41,614 Special revenue fund

Total increase $ 1,382,366   

During the year, general fund revenues and other financing sources exceeded budgetary estimates, 
while expenditures and encumbrances and continuing appropriations were less than budgeted 
appropriations, resulting in a positive budget to actual variance of approximately $1,073,000. 

Capital Asset and Debt Administration 
Capital assets  
The Town’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and business type activities at the end of 
the fiscal year totaled $123,417,431 (net of accumulated depreciation).  This investment in capital 
assets includes land, buildings and improvements, machinery, equipment and vehicles, construction in 
progress, intangible assets and infrastructure.  The total increase in the investment in capital assets for 
the current fiscal year totaled $7,683,422 or 6.6%. 

Major capital asset events that occurred during the current fiscal year include the following: 

 Wastewater expansion and capital improvements $2,872,267
 Water main replacement and capital improvements $3,443,812
 VFW Property – Land and Building $900,000
 High school building improvements $1,391,107
 Road Improvements $1,832,000
 Runway reconstruction $579,000

The following table summarizes the Town’s capital assets (net of accumulated depreciation): 

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

Land……………………………………………$ 7,347,280    $ 6,749,750  $ 3,015,500  $ 2,735,500   $ 10,362,780     $ 9,485,250   
Building and improvements………………… 24,013,480  23,818,281     -   -    24,013,480     23,818,281     
Machinery, equipment and vehicles………  2,394,749    2,319,122  77,026       70,498        2,471,775   2,389,620   
Infrastructure………………………………… 22,426,289  21,084,169     63,143,107    30,280,256      85,569,396     51,364,425     
Construction in progress…………………… -     -   -   27,676,433      -    27,676,433     
Intangible assets……………………………… 1,000,000    1,000,000  -   -    1,000,000   1,000,000   

Total capital assets………………………… $ 57,181,798  $ 54,971,322     $ 66,235,633    $ 60,762,687      $ 123,417,431   $ 115,734,009   

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

Additional information on the Town’s capital assets can be found in Note 5 on pages 41-43 of this 
report. 

 (10) 



TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2014 

Long-Term Debt 
At the end of the current fiscal year, total bonded debt outstanding was $53,754,789, which is backed 
by the full faith and credit of the Town, and is summarized as follows:   

2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013

General obligation bonds…………$ 18,878,454  $ 18,374,273     $ 20,040,894    $ 15,152,484      $ 38,919,348   $ 33,526,757   
MWPAT notes…………………… 266,260       296,916     14,569,181    15,763,018      14,835,441   16,059,934   

Total bonds and notes……………$ 19,144,714  $ 18,671,189     $ 34,610,075    $ 30,915,502      $ 53,754,789   $ 49,586,691   

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total

The Town’s total bonded debt increased by $4,168,098 (8.4%) during the current fiscal year, with new 
debt issuances of $8,318,910. 

Standard and Poor’s assigned an “AA“ rating on bonds issued during fiscal year 2014. 

Additional information on the Town’s long-term debt can be found in Note 9 on pages 45-49 of this 
report. 

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates 

The Town’s primary economic engine is the tourism industry, which operates at full capacity in June, 
July, and August. Real estate values in the Town remain strong.  The median home value in Town is 
$336,000. The median list price per square foot in the Town is $796, an increase of 39.6% compared to 
the same period last year.  

The development of the fiscal year 2015 general fund operating budget was influenced by limitations on 
the property tax levy imposed by Proposition 2 ½, and increase in the cost of goods and services.  The 
total real estate property tax levy for fiscal year 2015 is $17,957,000, an increase of 3.5% or $614,500.  
On the expense side, a majority of Town employees are covered by collective bargaining agreements, 
therefore salary and benefit increases in fiscal year 2015 were largely driven by these agreements.   

Requests for Information 
This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the Town’s finances for all those with 
an interest in its finances.  Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or 
requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Dan Hoort, Finance Director, 
Town of Provincetown, 260 Commercial Street, Provincetown, MA 02657. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2014 

Governmental Business-Type

ASSETS Activities Activities Total

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,228,082   $ 5,769,909   $ 9,997,991   

Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 7,806,243   1,137,044   8,943,287   

Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts:

Real Estate and Personal Property Taxes 792,933      -    792,933      

Tax and Utility Liens 563,805      76,414        640,219      

Motor Vehicle and Other Excise Taxes 112,617      -    112,617      

Community Preservation Surcharges 20,561        -    20,561        

Landbank 23,042        23,042        

User Charges -    1,170,829   1,170,829   

Special Assessments -    3,039,029   3,039,029   

Departmental and Other 155,106      -    155,106      

Intergovernmental 125,318      534,088      659,406      

Loans 15,609        -    15,609        

Internal Balances 604,106      (604,106)     -    

Total Current Assets 14,447,422      11,123,207      25,570,629      

Noncurrent Assets:

Restricted Investments 271,796      -    271,796      

Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts:

Real Estate Tax Deferrals 67,627        -    67,627        

Special Assessments -    17,965,304      17,965,304      

Intergovernmental 50,472        2,030,021   2,080,493   

Loans 131,820      -    131,820      

Tax Foreclosures 62,087        -    62,087        

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 8,347,280   3,015,500   11,362,780      

Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 48,834,518      63,220,133      112,054,651    

Total Noncurrent Assets 57,765,600      86,230,958      143,996,558    

Total Assets 72,213,022      97,354,165      169,567,187    

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:

Warrants Payable 291,863      519,289      811,152      

Accrued Payroll 409,997      2,377   412,374      

Customer Deposits -    242,507      242,507      

Other Liabilities 108,469      -    108,469      

Liabilities 15,117        -    15,117        

Accrued Interest 120,926      107,102      228,028      

Capital Lease Obligations 23,609        -    23,609        

Compensated Absences 32,139        886      33,025        

Short-Term Notes Payable -    2,850,000   2,850,000   

Long-Term Bonds and Notes Payable 1,875,106   2,405,354   4,280,460   

Total Current Liabilities 2,877,226   6,127,515   9,004,741   

Noncurrent Liabilities:

Compensated Absences 289,252      7,974   297,226      

Net OPEB Obligation 10,071,496      575,632      10,647,128      

Long-Term Bonds and Notes Payable 17,269,608      32,204,721      49,474,329      

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 27,630,356      32,788,327      60,418,683      

Total Liabilities 30,507,582      38,915,842      69,423,424      

NET POSITION

Net Investment in Capital Assets 38,806,147      30,897,596      69,703,743      

Restricted for:

Community Preservation and Landbank 3,033,921   -    3,033,921   

Tourism 952,020      -    952,020      

Affordable Housing 466,615      -    466,615      

Loans 147,429      -    147,429      

Debt Service 258,967      -    258,967      

Library 190,993      -    190,993      

    Permanent Funds:

    Expendable 62,135        -    62,135        

    Nonexpendable 356,088      -    356,088      

    Other Specific Purposes 1,973,407   -    1,973,407   

Unrestricted (4,542,282)  27,540,727      22,998,445      

Total Net Positions $ 41,705,440      $ 58,438,323      $ 100,143,763    

Primary Government

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Operating Capital Net
Charges for Grants and Grants and (Expense)

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Contributions Revenue
Primary Government:

Governmental Activities:
General Government $ 4,250,001     $ 534,685       $ 73,524 $ 325,946         $ (3,315,846)      
Public Safety 7,457,439     2,719,854    92,217 1,381             (4,643,987)      
Education 7,214,328     221,324       2,083,812 - (4,909,192)      
Public Works 5,066,749     569,466       19,961 677,305         (3,800,017)      
Airport 518,356        45,040         46,700 525,266         98,650            
Health and Human Services 1,043,141     173,952       43,833 71,800           (753,556)         
Culture and Recreation 1,862,379     209,281       64,328 - (1,588,770)      
Debt Service - Interest 627,446        - 109,319 - (518,127)         

Total Governmental Activities 28,480,591   4,473,602    2,533,694 1,601,698      (19,871,597)    

Business-Type Activities:
Water 1,901,719     2,173,278    1,255 2,936,852      3,209,666       
Wastewater 2,853,227     1,085,890    407,093 2,250,604      890,360          

Total Business-Type Activities 4,754,946     3,259,168    408,348         5,187,456      4,100,026       

Total Primary Government $ 33,235,537   $ 7,732,770    $ 2,942,042      $ 6,789,154      $ (15,771,571)    

(continued)

Program Revenues

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES (CONTINUED) 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Net (Expense) Revenue (From Previous Page) $ (19,871,597)       $ 4,100,026           $ (15,771,571)    

General Revenues:
Real Estate, Personal Property Taxes and Tax Liens 17,686,649        - 17,686,649     
Motor Vehicle and Other Excise Taxes 528,708             - 528,708          
Hotel/Motel and Meals Taxes 2,137,177          - 2,137,177       
Penalties and Interest Taxes 112,487             - 112,487          
Payments in Lieu of Taxes 5,959 - 5,959              
Community Preservation Surcharges 425,449             - 425,449          
Landbank Taxes 486,727             - 486,727          
Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to 

Specific Programs 91,401 - 91,401            
Unrestricted Investment Income 6,318 - 6,318              

Transfers, Net 330,534             (330,534)             - 

Total General Revenues and Transfers 21,811,409        (330,534)             21,480,875     

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 1,939,812          3,769,492           5,709,304       

Net Position - Beginning of Year 39,765,628        54,668,831         94,434,459     

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 41,705,440        $ 58,438,323         $ 100,143,763   

(concluded)

Primary Government

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

BALANCE SHEET 
JUNE 30, 2014 

Nonmajor Total
Governmental Governmental

General Funds Funds
ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 4,228,082           $ - $ 4,228,082            
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts:

Real Estate and Personal Property Taxes 792,933              - 792,933 
Real Estate Tax Deferral 67,627 - 67,627 
Tax and Utility Liens 563,805              - 563,805 
Motor Vehicle and Other Excise Taxes 112,617              - 112,617 
Community Preservation Surcharges - 20,561 20,561 
Landbank Taxes - 23,042 23,042 
Departmental and Other 150,924              4,183 155,107 
Intergovernmental 96,211 79,579 175,790 
Loans - 147,429 147,429 

Due from Other Funds 604,106              - 604,106 
Tax Foreclosures 62,087 - 62,087 
Restricted Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents - 7,806,242            7,806,242            
Investments - 271,796 271,796 

Total Assets $ 6,678,392           $ 8,352,832            $ 15,031,224          

LIABILITIES
Warrants Payable $ 202,860              $ 89,002 $ 291,862 
Accrued Payroll 392,812              17,186 409,998 
Other Liabilities 108,469              - 108,469 

Liabilities Due Depositors 15,117 - 15,117 

Total Liabilities 719,258              106,188 825,446 

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable Revenue 1,415,137           191,032 1,606,169            

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable - 356,088 356,088 
Restricted 258,967              7,161,900            7,420,867            
Committed 1,078,152           537,624 1,615,776            
Assigned 88,936 - 88,936 
Unassigned 3,117,942           - 3,117,942            

Total Fund Balances 4,543,997           8,055,612            12,599,609          

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources
and Fund Balances $ 6,678,392           $ 8,352,832            $ 15,031,224          

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Nonmajor Total

Governmental Governmental

General Funds Funds

REVENUES

Real Estate and Personal Property Taxes $ 17,213,856      $ -  $ 17,213,856      

Motor Vehicle and Other Excise Taxes 517,162    -  517,162    

Hotel/Motel and Meals Taxes 1,026,046        1,111,131        2,137,177        

Real Estate Tax and Utility Liens 117,164    -  117,164    

Payments in Lieu of Taxes 5,959        -  5,959        

Community Preservation Surcharges -        424,016    424,016    

Landbank Taxes 485,929    485,929    

Charges for Services -        705,617    705,617    

Parking 1,750,283        -  1,750,283        

Solid Waste 240,213    -  240,213    

Intergovernmental 1,911,681        2,079,980        3,991,661        

Penalties and Interest on Taxes 112,363    124    112,487    

Licenses and Permits 643,875    -  643,875    

Fines and Forfeitures 127,055    -  127,055    

Departmental and Other 454,414    499,598    954,012    

Contributions -        123,412    123,412    

Investment Income 8,618        9,606        18,224      

Total Revenues 24,128,689      5,439,413        29,568,102      

EXPENDITURES

Current:

General Government 2,932,310        302,538    3,234,848        

Public Safety 4,908,734        349,481    5,258,215        

Airport 97,361      677,521    774,882    

Education 4,427,515        928,928    5,356,443        

Public Works 3,474,903        2,291,055        5,765,958        

Health and Human Services 435,733    230,130    665,863    

Culture and Recreation 539,177    677,807    1,216,984        

Pension Benefits 2,650,534        -  2,650,534        

Employee Benefits 3,572,168        -  3,572,168        

Property and Liability Insurance 653,759    -  653,759    

State and County Charges 626,508    -  626,508    

Debt Service:

Principal 1,644,487        315,442    1,959,929        

Interest 473,516    163,033    636,549    

Total Expenditures 26,436,705      5,935,935        32,372,640      

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES

 OVER EXPENDITURES (2,308,016)       (496,522)   (2,804,538)       

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Transfers In 1,282,703        3,164        1,285,867        

Proceeds of Bonds and Notes -        2,433,454        2,433,454        

Premium from Issuance of Bonds and Notes 109,319    -  109,319    

Transfers Out (39,210)     (916,123)   (955,333)   

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 1,352,812        1,520,495        2,873,307        

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE (955,204)   1,023,973        68,769      

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year 5,499,201        7,031,639        12,530,840      

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 4,543,997        $ 8,055,612        $ 12,599,609      

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS  

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 
TOTAL FUND BALANCES TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2014 

Total Governmental Fund Balances $ 12,599,609      

Capital Assets (net of accumulated depreciation) used in 
 governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are
 not reported in the governmental funds 57,181,798      

Other assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures
 and, therefore, are deferred in the governmental funds 1,606,169        

In the statement of net position, interest is accrued on outstanding
 long-term debt, whereas in the governmental funds interest is not 
 reported until due (120,926)          

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
 therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds

Long-Term Bonds and Notes Payable (19,144,714)     
Capital Lease Obligation (23,609)            
Compensated Absences (321,391)          
Net OPEB Obligation (10,071,496)     

Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 41,705,440      

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Net Change in Fund Balance - Total Governmental Funds $ 68,769 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.  However, in the 
 statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
 useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. These amounts represent the
 related activity of the current period.

Capital Outlays 5,309,488           

Depreciation (3,099,012)          

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
 resources are fully deferred in the statement of revenues, expenditures and 
 changes in fund balances. Therefore, the recognition of revenue for various types
 of accounts receivable (i.e., real estate and personal property, motor vehicle
 excise tax, etc.) differ between the two statements. This amount represents the
 net change in deferred inflows. 412,446              

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds and leases) provides current
 financial resources to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of
 long-term debt consumes the financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
 transaction; however, has any impact on net position. Also, governmental funds
 report the effect of premiums, discounts, and similar items when debt is first issued,
 whereas these amounts are amortized in the statement of actvities.
 These amounts represent the related activity of the current period.

Bond Proceeds (2,433,454)          

Bond Maturities 1,959,929           
Capital Lease Maturities 37,248 

In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding long-term debt,
 whereas in the governmental funds interest is not reported until due. This 
 amount represents the net change in accrued interest payable. 9,103 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of
 current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the governmental
 funds.
These amounts represent the net changes:

Compensated Absences (12,688)               
Net OPEB Obligation (312,017)             

Changes in Net Position of Governmental Activities $ 1,939,812           

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements.

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2014 

ASSETS Water Wastewater Total
Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1,776,898       $ 3,993,011       $ 5,769,909     
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents - 1,137,044       1,137,044     
Receivables, Net of Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts:

Utility Liens 58,047            18,367            76,414          
User Charges 783,887          386,942          1,170,829     
Special Assessments - 3,039,029       3,039,029     
Intergovernmental 101,766          432,322          534,088        

Total Current Assets 2,720,598       9,006,715       11,727,313   

Noncurrent Assets
Special Assessments - 17,965,304     17,965,304   
Intergovernmental - 2,030,021       2,030,021     

Capital Assets not being Depreciated 3,015,500       - 3,015,500     
Capital assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 17,451,928     45,768,205     63,220,133   

Total Noncurrent Asets 20,467,428     65,763,530     86,230,958   

Total Assets 23,188,026     74,770,245     97,958,271   

Current Liabilities:
Warrants Payable 35,334            483,955          519,289        
Accrued Payroll 2,377              - 2,377            
Customer Deposits - 242,507          242,507        
Due to Other Funds 604,106          - 604,106        
Accrued Interest 35,375            71,727            107,102        
Compensated Abscenses 816 70 886               
Short-Term Notes  Payable - 2,850,000       2,850,000     
Long-Term Bonds and Notes Payable 660,474          1,744,880       2,405,354     

Total Current Liabilities 1,338,482       5,393,139       6,731,621     

Noncurrent Liabilities:
Compensated Absences 7,346              628 7,974            
Net OPEB Obligation 450,216          125,416          575,632        
Long-Term Bonds and Notes Payable 7,650,737       24,553,984     32,204,721   

Total Noncurrent Liabilities 8,108,299       24,680,028     32,788,327   

Total Liabilities 9,446,781       30,073,167     39,519,948   

NET POSITION
Net Investment in Capital Assets 12,156,217     18,741,379     30,897,596   
Unrestricted 1,585,028       25,955,699     27,540,727   

Total Net Position $ 13,741,245     $ 44,697,078     $ 58,438,323   

LIABILITIES

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Water Wastewater Total
OPERATING REVENUES

Charges for Services $ 1,949,413      $ 1,042,933      $ 2,992,346      
Utility Liens 74,586           33,123           107,709         
Penalties and Interest 14,251           9,834             24,085           
Other 135,028         166,347         301,375         

Total Operating Revenues 2,173,278      1,252,237      3,425,515      

OPERATING EXPENSES
Cost of Service and Administration 1,181,001      1,283,936      2,464,937      
Repairs and Maintenance 203,707         136,050         339,757         
Depreciation 336,879         811,239         1,148,118      

Total Operating Expenses 1,721,587      2,231,225      3,952,812      

OPERATING INCOME 451,691         (978,988)        (527,297)        

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Hotel/Motel Taxes - 240,745         240,745         
Intergovernmental 2,936,852      319,543         3,256,395      
Investment Income 1,255             - 1,255             
Interest Expense (180,132)        (622,001)        (802,133)        

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses), Net 2,757,975      (61,713)          2,696,262      

INCOME BEFORE CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS 3,209,666      (1,040,701)     2,168,965      
 AND TRANSFERS

Special Assessments - 1,931,061      1,931,061      
Transfers In 58,575           36,046           94,621           
Transfers Out (280,898)        (144,257)        (425,155)        

CHANGE IN NET POSITION 2,987,343      782,149         3,769,492      

Net Position - Beginning of Year 10,753,902    43,914,929    54,668,831    

NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR $ 13,741,245    $ 44,697,078    $ 58,438,323    

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Water Wastewater Total
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from Customers and Users $ 2,273,624 $ 1,300,249 $ 3,573,873 
Receipts from Interfund Services Provided - 
Payments to Vendors (1,404,434)     (882,371)        (2,286,805)     
Payments to Employees (604,595)        (119,785)        (724,380)        
Payments for Interfund Services Used - 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities 264,595 298,093 562,688 

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers In 58,575 36,046 94,621 
Transfers Out (280,898)        (144,257)        (425,155)        
Advances from Other Funds 363,281 363,281 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Noncapital Financing Activities 140,958 (108,211)        32,747 

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
 ACTIVITIES

Proceeds from the Issuance of Bonds and Notes 3,163,000 10,815,456 13,978,456 
Intergovernmental Capital Grant 5,007,184 30,546 5,037,730 
Hotel/Motel Taxes - 240,745 240,745 
Acquisition and Construction of Capital Assets (3,748,797)     (2,872,267)     (6,621,064)     
Principal Payments on Bonds and Notes (2,874,941)     (9,611,762)     (12,486,703)   
Interest Expense (176,356)        (355,344)        (531,700)        
Special Assessments 2,018,494 2,018,494 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Capital and Related
 Financing Activities 1,370,090 265,868 1,635,958 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment Income 1,255 - 1,255 

NET CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 1,776,898 455,750 2,232,648 

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year - 4,674,305 4,674,305 

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  - END OF YEAR $ 1,776,898 $ 5,130,055 $ 6,906,953

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

Water Wastewater Total
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO 
 NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Operating Income (Loss) $ 451,691 $ (978,988)        $ (527,297)        
Adjustment to Reconcile Operating Income (Loss) to 
 Net Cash Provided by Operating Activities:

Depreciation 336,879 811,239 1,148,118 
Net OPEB Obligation 20,141 3,981 24,122 
Changes in Assets and Liabilities:

User Charges 27,368 48,109 75,477 
Water Liens (14,534)          - (14,534)          
Wastewater Liens - (97) (97) 
Departmental and Other 87,512 - 87,512 
Warrants Payable (645,803)        479,760 (166,043)        
Accrued Payroll 2,109 - 2,109 
Customer Deposits - (65,892)          (65,892)          
Compensated Absences (768) (19) (787) 

Total Adjustments (187,096)        1,277,081 1,089,985 

Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities $ 264,595 $ 298,093 $ 562,688

NONCASH INVESTING, CAPITAL AND FINANCING 
 ACTIVITIES

Intergovernmental Debt Subsidies (MWPAT) $ - $ 471,557 $ 471,557

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
(22) 



TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2014 

Other
Postemployment Private

Benefits Purpose Agency
Trust Fund Trust Funds Funds

ASSETS

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 538,955 $ 234,138 $ 176,520 

Investments - 1,998,564 - 

Total Assets 538,955 2,232,702 176,520 

Warrants Payable - - 7,786 

Accrued Payroll - - 21,282 

Liabilities Due Depositors - - 147,452 

Total Liabilities - - 176,520 

NET POSITION
Held in Trust for Other Purposes $ 538,955 $ 2,232,702 $ - 

LIABILITIES

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 

 
 
 

 
Other

Postemployment Private
Benefits Purpose

Trust Fund Trust Funds
ADDITIONS

Contributions:
Employer $ 440,752               $ -                   
Private Donations  -                           1,696           

Net Investment Income:   
Interest  667                       35,198         

Intergovernmental  40,887                  -                   
  

TOTAL ADDITIONS  482,306                36,894         
  

DEDUCTIONS   
Scholarships Awarded  -                            59,301         

  
CHANGES IN NET POSITION  482,306                (22,407)        

 
NET POSITION - BEGINNING OF YEAR  56,649                  2,255,109    

NET POSITION - END OF YEAR $ 538,955               $ 2,232,702    

 

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.  
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2014 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

A. General 

The basic financial statements have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America (GAAP). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) is the standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting 
principles. The significant accounting policies are described herein. 

B. Reporting Entity 

The Town of Provincetown, Massachusetts (Town) is a municipal corporation that is governed by an 
elected Board of Selectmen.   

For financial reporting purposes, the basic financial statements include all funds, organizations, 
agencies, boards, commissions and institutions that are not legally separate from the Town.   

The Town has also considered all potential component units for which it is financially accountable as 
well as other organizations for which the nature and/or significance of their relationship with the Town 
are such that exclusion would cause the Town’s basic financial statements to be misleading or 
incomplete.   

Discretely Presented Component Unit 

Discretely presented component units are entities that are legally separate from the Town, but are 
financially accountable to the Town, or whose relationships with the Town are such that exclusion would 
cause the Town’s financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.   

The Provincetown Public Pier Corporation is a body politic and corporate organized and existing under 
Chapter 13 of the Acts of 2000, as amended by Chapter 260 of the Acts of 2002 of the Commonwealth 
of Massachusetts. It is a public instrumentality separate from the Town and is not an authority, board or 
committee of the Town. The Provincetown Public Pier Corporation was created in part for the purpose 
of managing and regulating all activities occurring on MacMillan Pier, Town owned property, which it 
leases from the Town. The Provincetown Public Pier Corporation is managed by a board of directors 
consisting of five members, appointed by the Board of Selectmen of the Town.  

The Town has not included the Provincetown Public Pier Corporation as a discretely presented 
component unit. This is a departure from accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America.  
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2014 
 
 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

B. Reporting Entity (Continued) 

Joint Venture 

A joint venture is an organization (resulting from a contractual arrangement) that is owned, operated or 
governed by two or more participants as a separate and specific activity subject to joint control in which 
the participants retain an ongoing financial interest or ongoing financial responsibility. Joint control 
means that no single participant has the ability to unilaterally control the financial or operating policies of 
the joint venture. 
 
The Town participates in one joint venture with other municipalities to pool resources and share the 
costs, risks and rewards of providing goods and services to venture participants directly, or for the 
benefit of the general public or specified recipients. The following table identifies the Town’s joint 
venture and related information: 

 

Fiscal Year
2014

Name Purpose Address Assessment

Cape Cod Regional To provide vocational 351 Pleasant Lake Avenue
Technical High School educational services Harwich, MA 02645 $ 66,914       

 
 

The Cape Cod Regional Technical High School (School) is governed by a twenty-one member school 
committee consisting of two elected representatives (appointed by the Board) from the Town. The Town 
is indirectly liable for the School’s debt and other expenditures and is assessed annually for its share of 
operating and capital costs.  Separate financial statements may be obtained by writing to the Treasurer 
of the School at the address identified above. 
 
C. Implementation of New Accounting Principles 

For the year ended June 30, 2014, the Town implemented the following pronouncements issued by the 
GASB: 
 
• GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities 
 
• GASB Statement No. 66, Technical Corrections – 2012 – an amendment of GASB Statements No. 
10 and No. 62 
 
• GASB Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Financial 
Guarantees 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2014 
 
 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

C. Implementation of New Accounting Principles (Continued) 

The implementation of GASB Statement No. 65 introduced deferred inflows and outflows of resources. 
These separate financial statement elements represent acquisitions and consumptions of net 
position/fund balance that applies to a future period(s).  The implementation of GASB Statement No. 65 
had no retrospective reporting impact for the Town.   
 
The implementation of GASB Statement No.’s 66 and 70 had no reporting impact for the Town. 
 
D. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (statement of net position and the statement activities) report 
information on all non-fiduciary activities of the primary government and its component units. 
Governmental activities, which are primarily supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are 
reported separately from business-type activities, which are primarily supported by user fees. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds, and fiduciary 
funds, even though fiduciary funds are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. Major 
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns 
in the fund financial statements. Nonmajor funds are aggregated and displayed in a single column. 
 
Fiduciary funds are reported by fund type. 
 
E. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded when the liabilities are incurred. Real estate and personal property taxes are 
recognized as revenues in the fiscal year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are 
recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 
 
The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a function or 
segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a 
specific function or segment.  Program revenues include the following: 
 
• Charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or 
privileges provided by a given function or segment. 
 
• Grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational requirements of a specific 
function or segment. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2014 
 
 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

E. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Continued) 

Government-Wide Financial Statements (Continued) 

Taxes and other items not identifiable as program revenues are reported as general revenues. 
 
Except for charges between the general fund and enterprise funds, the effect of interfund activity has 
been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.  Elimination of these charges would 
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the functions affected. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 

Governmental funds financial statements are reported using the flow of current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified accrual basis of 
accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual (i.e., measurable and available). 
Measurable means the amount of the transaction can be determined and available means collectible 
within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. Expenditures 
are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for unmatured interest on general long-
term debt which is recognized when due, and certain compensated absences, claims and judgments 
which are recognized when the obligations are expected to be liquidated with current expendable 
available resources. 
 
Real estate and personal property tax revenues are considered available if they are collected within 60-
days after the end of the fiscal year. Investment income is susceptible to accrual. Other receipts and tax 
revenues become measurable and available when the cash is received and are recognized as revenue 
at that time. 
 
Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to 
accrual criteria is met. Expenditure driven grants recognize revenue when the qualifying expenditures 
are incurred and all other grant requirements are met. 
 
The following major governmental fund is reported: 
 
The general fund is used to account for and report all financial resources not accounted for and 
reported in another fund. 
 
The nonmajor governmental funds consist of other special revenue, capital projects and permanent 
funds that are aggregated and presented in the nonmajor governmental funds column on the 
governmental funds financial statements. The following describes the general use of these fund types: 
 

• Special revenue funds are used to account for and report the proceeds of specific revenue sources 
that are restricted or committed to expenditure for specified purposes other than debt service or 
capital projects. 

 
• Capital projects funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, 

committed, or assigned to expenditure for capital outlays, including the acquisition or 
construction of capital facilities and other capital assets. Capital projects funds exclude those 
types of capital-related outflows financed by proprietary funds or for assets that will be held in 
trust for individuals, private organizations, or other governments. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2014 
 
 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

E. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation (Continued) 

Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

• Permanent funds are used to account for and report resources that are restricted to the extent that 
only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the government’s 
programs and benefit the government or its citizenry. 

 
Proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement 
focus and use the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenues are recorded when earned and 
expenses are recorded when the liabilities are incurred. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in 
connection with the proprietary funds principal ongoing operations. All revenues and expenses not 
meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses. 
 
The following major proprietary funds are reported: 
 

• The water enterprise fund is used to account for the water activities. 
 

• The wastewater enterprise fund is used to account for the wastewater activities. 
 
Fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the flow of economic resources measurement 
focus and use the accrual basis of accounting. Fiduciary funds are used to account for assets held in a 
trustee capacity for others that cannot be used to support the government’s programs. 
 
The following fiduciary fund types are reported: 
 

• The other postemployment benefit trust fund accounts for the activities of the Town’s other 
postemployment benefits plan, which accumulates resources for retiree medical and life 
insurance benefits. 

 
• The private-purpose trust fund is used to account for trust arrangements, other than those properly 

reported in the permanent fund, under which principal and investment income exclusively 
benefits individuals, private organizations, or other governments. 

 
• The agency fund is used to account for assets held in a custodial capacity.  Such assets consist 

primarily of performance bonds and student activity funds.  Agency funds do not present the 
results of operations or have a measurement focus. 

 
 
F. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term 
investments with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition. Investments 
are carried at fair value. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2014 
 
 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

G. Accounts Receivable 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The recognition of revenue related to accounts receivable reported in the government-wide financial 
statements and fund financial statements are reported under the accrual basis of accounting and the 
modified accrual basis of accounting, respectively. 
 
Real Estate Taxes, Personal Property Taxes and Tax Liens 

Real estate and personal property taxes are levied and based on values assessed on January 1st of 
every year. Assessed values are established by the Board of Assessor’s for 100% of the estimated fair 
market value. Taxes are due November 1st and May 1st and are subject to penalties and interest if they 
are not paid by the respective due date.   
 

Real Estate Taxes, Personal Property Taxes and Tax Liens (Continued) 

Real estate tax liens are processed six months after the close of the valuation year on delinquent 
properties and are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year they are processed. 
 
Motor Vehicle Excise Taxes 

Motor vehicle excise taxes are assessed annually for each vehicle registered in the Town and are 
recorded as receivables in the fiscal year of the levy. The Commonwealth is responsible for reporting 
the number of vehicles registered and the fair values of those vehicles to the Town. The tax calculation 
is the fair value of the vehicle multiplied by $25 per $1,000 of value. 
 
Community Preservation Surcharges 

Community preservation surcharges are levied annually and at a rate of 3.0% of residents’ real estate 
tax bills with exemptions for the first $100,000 of residential property and property owned by qualified 
persons with low income and seniors (60+) with low or moderate income as defined by DOR guidelines. 
The surcharge is due with the real estate tax November 1st and May 1st and are subject to penalties and 
interest if they are not paid by the respective due date. Overdue surcharges are included on the tax 
liens processed on delinquent real estate taxes. Surcharges are recorded as receivables in the fiscal 
year of the levy. 
 
Landbank Surcharges 

Landbank surcharges are levied annually and at a rate of 3.0% of residents’ real estate tax bills. The 
surcharge is due with the real estate tax on November 1st and May 1st and are subject to penalties and 
interest if they are not paid by the respective due date. Overdue surcharges would be included on the 
tax liens processed on delinquent real estate taxes. Surcharges are recorded as receivables in the 
fiscal year of the levy. 
 
Water and Wastewater 

User fees consist of water and wastewater levied semi-annually based on individual meter readings and 
are subject to penalties and interest if they are not paid by the respective due date. Water and 
wastewater liens are processed annually and are included as a lien on the property owner’s tax bill. 
Water and wastewater charges and liens are recorded as receivables in the fiscal year of the levy. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2014 
 
 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

G. Accounts Receivable (Continued) 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

Special Assessments 

Special assessments for wastewater betterments are levied annually based on the municipal 
wastewater project. Residents have the option of paying their respective share of the betterment up 
front or over a period of up to 20 years and are subject to penalties and interest if they are not paid by 
the respective due dates. Special assessments are recorded as receivables when the project is 
complete. 
 
Departmental and Other 

Departmental and other receivables represent amounts due from various departmental activities. These 
receivables are recorded when the service has been provided or the applicable agreement has been 
entered into. 
 
Intergovernmental 

Various state and federal operating and capital grants are applied for and received annually. For non-
expenditure driven grants, revenue is recognized as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the 
provider have been met. For expenditure driven grants, revenue is recognized when the qualifying 
expenditures are incurred and all other grant requirements are met. 
 
Loans 

The Town administers various loan programs to residents that provide assistance to comply with Title V 
(related to septic systems) requirements. Loans are recorded as receivables upon issuance. 
 
 
H. Allowance for Uncollectible Amounts 

The allowance for uncollectible amounts is estimated based on historical trends and specific account 
analysis for the following accounts receivable: 

 Personal property taxes 
 Motor vehicle and other excise taxes 
 Departmental and other 
 
The following types of accounts receivable are secured via the lien process and are considered 100% 
collectible. Accordingly, an allowance for uncollectible amounts is not reported. 

 Real estate taxes and tax liens 
 Community preservation surcharges 
 Landbank surcharges 
 Special Assessments 
 Water and wastewater 
 Loans 
 
Intergovernmental receivables are considered 100% collectible. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2014 
 
 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

I. Inventories 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Inventories are recorded as expenditures at the time of purchase.  Such inventories are not material in 
total to the government-wide and fund financial statements and therefore are not reported. 
 
J. Restricted Assets 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

Assets are reported as restricted when limitations on their use change the nature of the availability of 
the asset.  Such constraints are either externally imposed by creditors, contributors, grantors, or laws of 
other governments, or are imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 
 
Restricted assets in the enterprise funds represent cash and short-term investments and investments 
set aside for repayment of customer deposits. 
 
K. Capital Assets 

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements 

Capital assets, which consist of land, construction in progress, intangible assets, buildings and 
improvements, machinery, equipment and vehicles and infrastructure (e.g., roads, water mains, sewer 
mains, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities 
column of the government-wide financial statements.   
 
Capital assets are recorded at historical cost or at estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is not 
available. Donated capital assets are recorded at the estimated fair market value at the date of 
donation. Except for capital assets of the governmental activities column in the government-wide 
financial statements, construction period interest is capitalized on constructed capital assets. 
 
Purchases and construction costs are capitalized at the date of acquisition or construction, respectively, 
with expected useful lives of greater than one year in accordance with the following capitalization dollar 
threshold as recommended by the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, Department of Revenue, Division 
of local services, Bureau of Accounts: 
 

Capitalization
Threshold

Capital Asset Type (in dollars)

Land……………………………………………… 25,000$          
Intangible assets………………………………… 25,000            
Buildings………………………………………… 100,000          
Building Improvements………………………… 50,000            
Machinery, equipment and vehicles………… 20,000            
Infrastructure…………………………………… 150,000          
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2014 
 
 

NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

K. Capital Assets (Continued) 

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements (Continued) 

Capital assets (excluding land) are depreciated on a straight-line basis. The estimated useful lives of 
capital assets are as follows: 

 
Estimated

Useful
Life

(in years)

Buildings and improvements……………… 10-40
Machinery, equipment and vehicles……… 3-15
Infrastructure………………………………… 20-50

Capital Asset Type

 
 

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets or materially 
extend asset lives are not capitalized and are treated as expenses when incurred. Improvements are 
capitalized. 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements 

Capital asset costs are recorded as expenditures in the acquiring fund in the fiscal year of the purchase. 
 
L. Interfund Receivables and Payables 

During the course of its operations, transactions occur between and within funds that may result in 
amounts owed between funds. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the 
governmental activities in the statement of net position.  Any residual balances outstanding between the 
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the statement of net position as 
“internal balances”. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 

Transactions of a buyer/seller nature between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual 
fund statements. Receivables and payables resulting from these transactions are classified as “Due 
from other funds” or “Due to other funds” on the balance sheet. 
 

M. Interfund Transfers 

During the course of its operations, resources are permanently reallocated between and within funds.   
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements 

Transfers between and within governmental funds are eliminated from the governmental activities in the 
statement of net position. Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and 
business-type activities are reported in the statement of activities as “Transfers, net”. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

M. Interfund Transfers (Continued) 

Fund Financial Statements 

Transfers between and within funds are not eliminated from the individual fund statements and are 
reported as transfers in and transfers out. 
 
N. Deferred Outflows of Resources 

In addition to assets, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be 
recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until that time.  
 
The Town does not have items that qualify for reporting in this category. 
 
O. Deferred Inflows of Resources  

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, 
represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized 
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  

 
The Town has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category. It is as follows: 

 
Unavailable revenue is reported in the governmental funds balance sheet. Unavailable revenue 
represents billed receivables that do not meet the available criterion in accordance with the current 
financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  
 
P. Net Position and Fund Balances 

Government-Wide Financial Statements and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements (Net 
Position) 
Net position is the residual of all other elements (assets, liabilities, deferred outflows and deferred 
inflows) presented in a statement of financial position and is displayed in three components – net 
investment in capital assets; restricted (distinguishing between major categories of restrictions); and 
unrestricted.   
 
Net position is reported as restricted when amounts are restricted by outside parties for a specific future 
use. 
 
Net position has been “restricted” for the following: 
 
“Community Preservation and Landbank” represents amounts restricted for affordable housing, open 
space and historic purposes. 
 
“Tourism” represents amounts restricted for the promotion of tourism. 
 
“Affordable Housing” represents amounts restricted to provide for the creation and preservation of 
affordable housing for the benefit of low and moderate income households. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

P. Net Position and Fund Balances (Continued) 

Government-Wide Financial Statements and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements (Net 
Position) (Continued) 
 “Loans” represents outstanding septic loans receivable. 
 
“Debt Service” represents the amount accumulated for the future payment of long-term debt service 
costs. 
 
“Library” represents amount restricted for the support of the public library. 
 
“Permanent Funds – expendable” represents amounts held in trust for which the expenditures are 
restricted by various trust agreements. 
 
“Permanent Funds – nonexpendable” represents amounts held in trust for which only investment 
earnings may be expended. 
 
“Other Specific Purposes” represents restrictions placed on assets from outside parties. 

 
Governmental Funds Financial Statements (Fund Balances) 
The following fund balance classifications describe the relative strength of the spending constraints: 
 
Nonspendable — represents amounts that cannot be spent either because they are in nonspendable 
form (i.e., prepaid amounts) or because they are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact 
(i.e., principal of permanent fund). 
 
Restricted — represents amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of constitutional 
provisions or enabling legislation or because of constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, 
grantors, contributors, or the laws or regulations of other governments. 
 
Committed — represents amounts that can be used only for specific purposes imposed by a formal 
action of Town Meeting which is the highest level of decision-making authority for the Town.  Committed 
amounts may be established, modified, or rescinded only through actions approved by Town Meeting. 
 
Assigned — represents amounts that do not meet the criteria to be classified as restricted or committed 
but are intended to be used for specific purposes.  Under the Town’s structure, only authorized 
assignments for non-contractual encumbrances can be made by individual department heads. 
 
Unassigned – represents the residual fund balance for the General Fund and the negative residual fund 
balance of any other governmental fund that cannot be eliminated by offsetting assigned fund balance 
amounts. 

 
In circumstances when an expenditure is made for a purpose for which amounts are available in 
multiple fund balance classifications, fund balance is depleted in the order of restricted, committed, 
assigned and unassigned. 
 
Encumbrance amounts have been assigned for specific purposes for which resources already have 
been allocated. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

Q. Long-term Debt 

Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements 
Long-term debt is reported as liabilities in the government-wide and proprietary fund statements of net 
position. Material bond premiums and discounts are amortized over the life of the bonds using the 
straight-line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. 

 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements 
The face amount of governmental funds long-term debt is reported as other financing sources when the 
debt is issued. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are recognized in the current 
period. Bond premiums are reported as other financing sources and bond discounts are reported as 
other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual bond proceeds received, 
are reported as general government expenditures. 
 
R. Investment Income 

Excluding the permanent funds, investment income derived from major and Nonmajor governmental 
funds is legally assigned to the general fund unless otherwise directed by Massachusetts General Law 
(MGL). 
 
Investment income from proprietary funds is retained in the funds. 
 
S. Compensated Absences 

Employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on collective bargaining 
agreements, state laws and executive policies. 
 
Government-Wide and Proprietary Fund Financial Statements 
Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave are reported as liabilities and expensed as incurred. 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements 
Vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave, which will be liquidated with expendable available 
financial resources, are reported as expenditures and fund liabilities upon employee retirements and 
resignations. 
 
T. Post Retirement Benefits 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
In addition to providing pension benefits, the Town provides health and life insurance coverage for 
current and future retirees and their spouses as more fully described in Note 11. 
 
U. Use of Estimates 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 
The preparation of basic financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure for 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the basic financial statements and the reported amounts 
of the revenues and expenditures/expenses during the fiscal year.  Actual results could vary from 
estimates that were used. 
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NOTE 1 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 

V. Total Column 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 
The total column presented on the government-wide financial statements represents consolidated 
financial information. 
 
Fund Financial Statements 
The total column presented on the fund financial statements is presented only to facilitate financial 
analysis. Data in this column is not the equivalent of consolidated financial information. 

 
 

NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

A. Budgetary Information 

Municipal Law requires the adoption of a balanced budget that is approved by Town Meeting vote. The 
Board of Selectmen presents an annual budget to Town Meeting, which includes estimates of revenues 
and other financing sources and recommendations of expenditures and other financing uses. Town 
Meeting, which has full authority to amend and/or reject the budget or any line item, adopts the 
expenditure budget by majority vote. 
 
Any town meeting may, by majority vote increase an appropriation or transfer any existing appropriation 
to any other municipal use. During the last two months of the fiscal year and first 15 days of the 
subsequent fiscal year the selectmen, with the agreement of the finance committee, may transfer any 
departmental appropriation to another appropriation within the same or other department; however, this 
procedure may not be used to transfer more than three percent of a department’s annual budget, or 
$5,000, whichever is greater.  
 
The majority of appropriations are non-continuing which lapse at the end of each fiscal year. Others are 
continuing appropriations for which the governing body has authorized that an unspent balance from a 
prior fiscal year be carried forward and made available for spending in the current fiscal year.   
 
Generally, expenditures may not exceed the level of spending (salaries, expenses and capital) 
authorized for an appropriation account. However, the Town is statutorily required to pay debt service, 
regardless of whether such amounts are appropriated. 
  
An annual budget is adopted for the general fund in conformity with the guidelines described above. 
The original fiscal year 2014 approved budget for the general fund authorized approximately 
$24,003,000 in appropriations and other amounts to be raised. During fiscal year 2014 supplemental 
appropriations totaling approximately $1,382,000 were authorized. 
 
The Accountant’s office has the responsibility to ensure that budgetary control is maintained. Budgetary 
control is exercised through the accounting system. 
 

The budgetary comparison schedule presented in the accompanying required supplementary 
information presents comparisons of the legally adopted budget, as amended, with actual results and 
encumbrances and continuing appropriations carried forward to the ensuing fiscal year. The originally 
adopted budget is presented for purposes of comparison to the final, amended budget.  
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NOTE 2 STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED) 

A. Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations 

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, expenditures of the general fund exceeded appropriations for 
culture recreation in the amount of $1,700, pension benefits in the amount of $3,558, property and 
liability insurance in the amount of $69,585, and transfers out $3,164. 
 
 

NOTE 3 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS 

The municipal finance laws of the Commonwealth authorize the Town to invest temporarily idle cash in 
bank term deposits and certificates of deposits, and treasury and agency obligations of the United 
States government, with maturities of one year or less; U.S. treasury or agency repurchase agreements 
with maturities of not more than 90 days; money market accounts; and the state treasurer’s investment 
pool – the Massachusetts Municipal Depository Trust (MMDT). 
 
The MMDT meets the criteria of an external investment pool and operates in accordance with applicable 
state laws and regulations. The Treasurer of the Commonwealth serves as Trustee. The reported value 
of the pool is the same as the fair value of pool shares. 
 
A cash and investment pool is maintained that is available for use by all funds with unrestricted cash 
and investments. The deposits and investments of private purpose trust funds and the pension trust 
fund are held separately from other Town funds. 
 

Deposits - Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Town’s deposits may 
not be recovered. The Town does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of deposits. As of June 30, 
2014, $3,518,554 of the Town’s bank balance of $19,785,159 was uninsured and exposed to custodial 
credit risk. 
 
Investments Summary 

The Town’s investments at June 30, 2014 are presented below. All investments are presented by 
investment type, with debt securities presented by maturity. 
 

Fair Less
Investment Type Value Than 1 1 - 5

Debt Securities:
U.S. Treasuries……………………… $ 185,936          $ -                       $ 185,936           
U.S. Agencies…………………………  1,347,377       -                       1,347,377        
Money market mutual funds………  51,478            51,478             -                       
Certificates of deposit………………  887,337          150,291           737,046           

 
  Total debt securities………………  2,472,128       $ 201,769           $ 2,270,359        

Other Investments:
External investment pools…………  2,049              

Total investments…………………… $ 2,474,177       

Investment Maturities (in Years)
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NOTE 3 DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED) 

Investments (Debt Securities) - Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate risk for debt securities is the risk that changes in interest rates of debt securities will 
adversely affect the fair value of an investment. The Town does not have a policy for interest rate risk of 
debt securities.  
 
Investments - Concentration of Credit Risk 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of the Town’s investment in a 
single issuer.  The Town does not have a policy for concentration of credit risk.  As of June 30, 2014, 
the Town had the following certificates of deposit with a single issuer that represented 5 percent or more 
of the Town’s total investments: 

 
Percentage

Fair of Total
Issuer Value Investments

Federal National Mortgage Association……………  723,445$          29%
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation………… 482,373            19%
Firstbank PR Santurce…………………………………  246,110            10%
Bank of China, New York City, NY…………………  150,291            6%
Discover Bank, Greenwood, Delaware………………  150,273            6%
Goldman Sachs Bank USA, NY………………………  149,756            6%
Federal Home Loan Bank……………………………… 129,745            5%  

 

Investments - Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the 
Town will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the 
possession of an outside party. The Town does not have a policy for custodial credit risk of investments. 
As of June 30, 2014 the Town was not exposed to custodial credit risk. 
 

Fair
Investment Type Value AA+ Unrated

U.S. Agencies……………………………$ 1,347,377       $ 1,347,377     $ -                      
U.S. Treasuries…………………………  185,936          185,936        -                      
Certificates of deposit…………………  887,337          -                   887,337          
Money market mutual funds………….… 51,478            -                   51,478            
External investment pools……………  2,049              -                   2,049              

 
Total……………………………….………$ 2,474,177       $ 1,533,313     $ 940,864          

Quality Ratings *

 
 

* Per the rating scale of Standard and Poor’s (a national credit rating organization). 
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NOTE 4 ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

At June 30, 2014, receivables for the individual major governmental funds and nonmajor, and fiduciary 
funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible amounts, are as follows: 

 
Allowance

Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount

Receivables:
Real estate and personal property taxes…… $ 792,933       $ -                     $ 792,933       
Real estate tax deferrals……………………… 67,627         -                     67,627         
Tax, trash and utility liens……………………  563,805       -                     563,805       
Motor vehicle and other excise taxes………  112,617       -                     112,617       
Community preservation surcharges………  20,561         -                     20,561         
Landbank taxes………………………………  23,042         -                     23,042         
Departmental and other……………………… 155,107       -                     155,107       
Intergovernmental……………………………  175,790       -                     175,790       
Loans…………………………………………… 147,429       -                     147,429       

$ 2,058,911    $ -                     $ 2,058,911    

 
At June 30, 2014, receivables for the water and wastewater enterprise funds consist of the following: 

 
Allowance

Gross for Net
Amount Uncollectibles Amount

Receivables:
Utility liens……………………………………… $ 76,414         $ -                     $ 76,414         
User charges…………………………………… 1,170,829    -                     1,170,829    
Special assessments………………………… 21,004,333  -                     21,004,333  
Intergovernmental……………………………  2,564,109    -                     2,564,109    

$ 24,815,685  $ -                     $ 24,815,685  
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NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 was as follows: 
 

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Governmental Activities:
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land…………………………………………………… $ 6,749,750                      $ 597,530                $ -                         $ 7,347,280                      
Construction in progress………………………………  -                                     -                            -                         -                                     
Intangible assets………………………………………  1,000,000                      -                            -                         1,000,000                      

 
Total capital assets not being depreciated………  7,749,750                      597,530                -                         8,347,280                      

 
Capital assets being depreciated:  

Buildings and improvements…………………………  38,476,201                    1,693,577             -                         40,169,778                    
Machinery, equipment and vehicles…………………  6,451,987                      607,381                (26,250)              7,033,118                      
Infrastructure……………………………………………  43,182,255                    2,411,000             -                         45,593,255                    

 
Total capital assets being depreciated…………  88,110,443                    4,711,958             (26,250)              92,796,151                    

 
Less accumulated depreciation for:  

Buildings and improvements…………………………  (14,657,920)                   (1,498,378)            -                         (16,156,298)                   
Machinery, equipment and vehicles…………………  (4,132,865)                     (531,754)               26,250               (4,638,369)                     
Infrastructure……………………………………………  (22,098,086)                   (1,068,880)            -                         (23,166,966)                   

 
Total accumulated depreciation…………………  (40,888,871)                   (3,099,012)            26,250               (43,961,633)                   

 
Total capital assets being depreciated, net………………  47,221,572                    1,612,946             -                         48,834,518                    

 
Total governmental activities capital assets, net……… $ 54,971,322                    $ 2,210,476             $ -                         $ 57,181,798                    
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NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Business-Type Activities: 
Water Enterprise Fund
Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land…………………………………………………… $ 2,735,500                      $ 280,000                $ -                         $ 3,015,500                      
Construction in progress………………………………  8,909,606                      -                            (8,909,606)         -                                     

 
Total capital assets not being depreciated………  11,645,106                    280,000                (8,909,606)         3,015,500                      

 
Capital assets being depreciated:  

Machinery, equipment and vehicles…………………  233,206                         24,985                  -                         258,191                         
Infrastructure……………………………………………  10,783,009                    12,353,418           -                         23,136,427                    

 
Total capital assets being depreciated…………  11,016,215                    12,378,403           -                         23,394,618                    

 
Less accumulated depreciation for:  

Machinery, equipment and vehicles…………………  (162,708)                        (18,457)                 -                         (181,165)                        
Infrastructure……………………………………………  (5,443,103)                     (318,422)               -                         (5,761,525)                     

 
Total accumulated depreciation…………………  (5,605,811)                     (336,879)               -                         (5,942,690)                     

 
Total capital assets being depreciated, net………………  5,410,404                      12,041,524           -                         17,451,928                    

 
Total water capital assets, net…………………………. $ 17,055,510                    $ 12,321,524           $ (8,909,606)         $ 20,467,428                    

Beginning Ending
Balance Increases Decreases Balance

Wastewater Enterprise Fund
Construction in progress……………………………… $ 18,766,827                    $ -                            $ (18,766,827)       $ -                                     

 
Total capital assets not being depreciated………  18,766,827                    -                            (18,766,827)       -                                     

 
Capital assets being depreciated:  

Machinery and equipment……………………………  23,970                           -                            -                         23,970                           
Infrastructure……………………………………………  29,742,380                    21,639,094           -                         51,381,474                    

 
Total capital assets being depreciated…………  29,766,350                    21,639,094           -                         51,405,444                    

 
Less accumulated depreciation for:  

Machinery and equipment……………………………  (23,970)                          -                            -                         (23,970)                          
Infrastructure……………………………………………  (4,802,030)                     (811,239)               -                         (5,613,269)                     

 
Total accumulated depreciation…………………  (4,826,000)                     (811,239)               -                         (5,637,239)                     

 
Total capital assets being depreciated, net………………  24,940,350                    20,827,855           -                         45,768,205                    

 
Total wastewater capital assets, net……………………… $ 43,707,177                    $ 20,827,855           $ (18,766,827)       $ 45,768,205                    
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NOTE 5 CAPITAL ASSETS (CONTINUED) 

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 
 

Governmental Activities:
General government…………………………………$ 944,641         
Airport…………………………………………………  322,473         
Public safety…………………………………………  378,700         
Education……………………………………………  457,496         
Public works…………………………………………  527,959         
Health and human services………………………… 65,354           
Culture and recreation………………………………  402,389         

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities…………$ 3,099,012      

Business-Type Activities:
Water………………………………………………… $ 336,879         
Wastewater…………….……………………………  811,239         

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities……… $ 1,148,118      

 
 

NOTE 6 INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS 

Receivables and payables between funds at June 30, 2014 are summarized as follows: 
 

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Fund (0100) Water Enterprise Fund (1975, 4007, 6001) $ 604,106          
 
Interfund transfers for fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 are summarized as follows: 
 

Nonmajor Water Wastewater
General Governmental Enterprise Enterprise

Fund Funds Fund Fund Total

$ -                       $ 3,164                   $ -                           $ 36,046             $ 39,210        (1)
857,548           -                           58,575                 -                       916,123      (2)
280,898           -                           -                           -                       280,898      (3)
144,257           -                           -                           -                       144,257      (4)

$ 1,282,703        $ 3,164                   $ 58,575                 $ 36,046             $ 1,380,488   

(1) Budgeted transfers from the general fund to wastewater enterprise fund ($36,046) and various closed capital articles ($3,164)
(2) Budgeted transfers to the general fund from capital stabilization ($340,600), parking ($143,675), cable television ($168,114), 
land bank ($74,808), municipal waterways ($60,000), ferry embarkation ($35,000), Title V Betterment ($30,655),
wetland protection ($4,696) special revenue funds and transfer from community preservation fund ($58,575) to water enterprise
fund for debt service.
(3) Budgeted transfer from the water enterprise fund
(4) Budgeted transfer from the wastewater enterprise fund

Nonmajor Governmental Funds………
Water Enterprise Fund……………..
Wastewater Enterprise Fund……………

Transfers In:

Transfers Out:

General Fund………………………………
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NOTE 7 SHORT-TERM FINANCING 

Short-term debt may be authorized and issued to fund the following: 

• Current operating costs prior to the collection of revenues through issuance of revenue anticipation 
notes (RAN) or tax anticipation notes (TAN). 

• Capital project costs and other approved expenditures incurred prior to obtaining permanent financing 
through issuance of bond anticipation notes (BAN) or grant anticipation notes (GAN). 

 
Short-term loans are general obligations and carry maturity dates that are limited by statute. Interest 
expenditures and expenses for short-term borrowings are accounted for in the general fund and 
enterprise fund, respectively. 
 
Details related to the short-term debt activity for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 is as follows: 

 
Notes Payable – Governmental Funds 

Origination Maturity Interest Balance at Balance at
Type Description Date Date Rate June 30, 2013 Increases Decreases June 30, 2014

BAN Trash removal trailer/truck……………………… 4/1/13 4/1/14 0.45% 98,833            (98,833)           -                      
BAN Public Library remodeling……………………… 4/1/13 4/1/14 0.45% 44,000            (44,000)           -                      
BAN Drainage (Stormwater Management)………… 6/26/13 4/1/14 0.45% 37,000            (37,000)           -                      
BAN Street construction……………………………… 6/26/13 4/1/14 0.45% 115,000          (115,000)         -                      
BAN High School renovations……………………… 6/26/13 4/1/14 0.45% 86,000            (86,000)           -                      
BAN Trash removal trailer/truck……………………… 4/1/14 6/20/14 0.45% 98,833            (98,833)           -                      
BAN Public Library remodeling……………………… 4/1/14 6/20/14 0.45% 44,000            (44,000)           -                      
BAN Drainage (Stormwater Management)………… 4/1/14 6/20/14 0.45% 37,000            (37,000)           -                      
BAN Street construction……………………………… 4/1/14 6/20/14 0.45% 115,000          (115,000)         -                      
BAN High School renovations……………………… 4/1/14 6/20/14 0.45% 86,000            (86,000)           -                      

Total………………………………………………  $ 380,833          $ 380,833          $ (761,666)         $ -                      

 
 

Notes Payable – Enterprise Funds 
Origination Maturity Interest Balance at Balance at

Type Description Date Date Rate June 30, 2013 Increases Decreases June 30, 2014

BAN Water System improvements………………… 4/1/13 4/1/14 0.45% 1,200,000       (1,200,000)      -                      
BAN Water main replacement……………………… 4/1/13 4/1/14 0.45% 72,000            (72,000)           -                      
BAN North Union Field land acquisition…………… 4/1/13 4/1/14 0.45% 349,820          (349,820)         -                      
BAN Wastewater optimization and expansion……… 4/1/13 4/1/14 0.45% 864,000          (864,000)         -                      
BAN Wastewater optimization and expansion……… 6/26/13 4/1/14 0.45% 537,000          (537,000)         -                      
BAN Wastewater optimization and expansion……… 6/26/13 4/1/14 0.45% 1,901,000       (1,901,000)      -                      
BAN Water excavator………………………………… 6/26/13 4/1/14 0.45% 50,000            (50,000)           -                      
BAN Water pick-up truck……………………………… 6/26/13 4/1/14 0.45% 25,000            (25,000)           -                      
BAN Water mains……………………………………… 6/26/13 4/1/14 0.45% 54,000            (54,000)           -                      
BAN Water main replacement……………………… 4/1/14 6/20/14 0.45% 72,000            (72,000)           -                      
BAN North Union Field land acquisition…………… 4/1/14 6/20/14 0.45% 340,000          (340,000)         -                      
BAN Wastewater optimization and expansion……… 4/1/14 6/20/14 0.45% 864,000          (864,000)         -                      
BAN Wastewater optimization and expansion……… 4/1/14 6/20/14 0.45% 537,000          (537,000)         -                      
BAN Wastewater optimization and expansion……… 4/1/14 6/20/14 0.45% 1,901,000       (1,901,000)      -                      
BAN Water excavator………………………………… 4/1/14 6/20/14 0.45% 50,000            (50,000)           -                      
BAN Water pick-up truck……………………………… 4/1/14 6/20/14 0.45% 25,000            (25,000)           -                      
BAN Water mains……………………………………… 4/1/14 6/20/14 0.45% 54,000            (54,000)           -                      
BAN Wastewater optimization and expansion……… 6/20/14 12/19/14 0.45% -                      4,250,000       (1,400,000)      2,850,000       

Total………………………………………………  $ 5,052,820       $ 8,093,000       $ (10,295,820)    $ 2,850,000       
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NOTE 8 LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

The following represents a summary of changes that occurred in long-term obligations during the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2014: 
 

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30, Current

2013 Increases Decreases 2014 Portion
Governmental Activities:
Bonds and notes payable………… $ 18,671,189 $ 2,433,454  $ (1,959,929) $ 19,144,714 $ 1,875,106 
Capital lease obligations……………  60,857        -                 (37,248)      23,609        23,609      
Net OPEB obligation………………… 9,759,479   2,037,951  (1,725,934) 10,071,496 -                
Compensated absences…………… 308,704      12,688       -                 321,392      32,139      

Total………………………………… $ 28,800,229 $ 4,484,093  $ (3,723,111) $ 29,561,211 $ 1,930,854 

Business-type Activities:
Bonds and notes payable………… $ 30,915,502 $ 5,885,456  $ (2,190,883) $ 34,610,075 $ 2,405,354 
Net OPEB obligation…………………  551,510      157,554     (133,432)    575,632      -                
Compensated absences…………… 9,647          -                 (549)           9,098          886           

Total………………………………… $ 31,476,659 $ 6,043,010  $ (2,324,864) $ 35,194,805 $ 2,406,240 

 
 

NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT 

Details related to the outstanding indebtedness at June 30, 2014 and the debt service requirements are 
as follows: 
 
Bonds and Notes Payable – Governmental Funds 

Outstanding Outstanding
Maturity Interest at June 30, at June 30,

Project Date Rate 2013 Issued Redeemed 2014

MWPAT Title V Septic Program………… 08/01/18  0.00% 65,212           -                        (10,872)            54,340            
MWPAT Title V Septic Program………… 08/01/24  0.00% 109,050         -                        (9,525)              99,525            
MWPAT Title V Septic Program………… 08/01/24  0.00% 122,654         -                        (10,259)            112,395          
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2006………… 09/15/24  3.71% 1,314,000      -                        (133,000)          1,181,000       
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2007………… 11/15/25  3.86% 1,742,000      -                        (143,000)          1,599,000       
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2009………… 06/15/29  3.72% 4,720,000      -                        (495,000)          4,225,000       
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2011………… 01/15/30  3.49% 5,775,000      -                        (575,000)          5,200,000       
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2012………… 12/15/30  2.59% 3,133,273      -                        (308,273)          2,825,000       
Refunding of MPL 2002 & MPL 2004…… 11/01/26  2.0-4.0% 1,690,000      -                        (275,000)          1,415,000       
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2014………… 06/15/34 2.0-3.5% -                     2,433,454         -                       2,433,454       

  
Total governmental funds…………………  $ 18,671,189    $ 2,433,454         $ (1,959,929)       $ 19,144,714     

 
 
During fiscal year 2014, the Town issued bonds of $2,433,454 for street construction, library 
remodeling, school building remodeling, purchase of equipment, and other various municipal purposes. 
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NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

Debt service requirements (gross) for principal and interest for governmental bonds and notes payable 
in future fiscal years are as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2015……………$ 1,875,106      $ 628,726            $ 2,503,832        
2016…………… 1,827,164      576,873            2,404,037        
2017…………… 1,744,164      518,520            2,262,684        
2018…………… 1,649,164      462,720            2,111,884        
2019…………… 1,519,164      410,139            1,929,303        

2020…………..  1,277,296      362,661            1,639,957        
2021………….… 1,267,296      321,209            1,588,505        
2022…………… 1,230,296      280,283            1,510,579        
2023…………… 1,145,296      238,381            1,383,677        
2024…………… 1,129,884      198,059            1,327,943        
2025…………… 1,059,884      157,836            1,217,720        
2026…………… 925,000         121,746            1,046,746        
2027…………… 810,000         89,512              899,512           
2028…………… 620,000         59,247              679,247           
2029…………… 615,000         36,204              651,204           
2030…………… 250,000         12,873              262,873           
2031…………… 145,000         4,218                149,218           
2032…………… 20,000           1,788                21,788             
2033…………… 20,000           1,138                21,138             
2034…………… 15,000           488                   15,488             

Total……………$ 19,144,714    $ 4,482,621         $ 23,627,335      
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NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

Bonds and Notes Payable – Enterprise Funds 

Outstanding Outstanding
Maturity Interest at June 30, at June 30,

Project Date Rate 2013 Issued Redeemed 2014

MWPAT Wastewater Facilities……………… 08/01/22  0.00% $ 8,935,000      $ -                        $ (775,000)            $ 8,160,000      
MWPAT Sewer Syatem Improvements……  08/01/19  0.00% 161,662         -                        (19,595)              142,067         
MWPAT Wastewater Facilities Planning…… 08/01/23  0.00% 54,316           -                        (4,316)                50,000           
MWPAT Wastewater Facilities……………… 07/15/25  0.00% 1,543,918      -                        (105,039)            1,438,879      
MWPAT Wastewater Facilities……………… 07/15/27  0.00% 4,409,051      -                        (254,583)            4,154,468      
MWPAT Wastewater Facilities……………… 07/15/28  2.00% 659,071         -                        (35,304)              623,767         
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2007…………… 11/15/25  3.86% 1,297,000      -                        (100,000)            1,197,000      
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2009…………… 06/15/29  3.72% 960,000         -                        (80,000)              880,000         
USDA Sewer Bond…………………………… 12/15/49  2.25% 2,846,152      -                        (76,924)              2,769,228      
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2011…………… 01/15/30  3.49% 75,000           -                        (5,000)                70,000           
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2009…………… 06/15/29  3.72% 575,000         -                        (130,000)            445,000         
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2006…………… 09/15/24  3.71% 816,000         -                        (137,000)            679,000         
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2007…………… 11/15/25  3.86% 161,000         -                        (47,000)              114,000         
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2011…………… 01/15/30  3.49% 555,000         -                        (85,000)              470,000         
USDA Water Bond…………………………… 04/17/50  2.00% 2,401,105      -                        (64,895)              2,336,210      
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2012…………… 12/15/41  2.59% 1,484,227      -                        (104,227)            1,380,000      
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2012…………… 12/15/41  2.59% 3,252,000      -                        (122,000)            3,130,000      
Refunding of MPL 2002 & MPL 2004………  11/01/32  2.0-4.0% 280,000         -                        (15,000)              265,000         
Refunding of MPL 2002 & MPL 2004………  11/01/32  2.0-4.0% 450,000         -                        (30,000)              420,000         
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2014…………..  06/15/34 2.58% -                    1,422,000         -                         1,422,000      
Municipal Purpose Loan of 2014…………..  06/15/34 2.58% -                    1,863,456         -                         1,863,456      
USDA Water Bond…………………………… 03/28/52 2.00% -                    1,200,000         -                         1,200,000      
USDA Wastewater Bond……………………… 08/15/52 2.75% -                    1,400,000         -                         1,400,000      

 
Total Enterprise funds…………………………   $ 30,915,502    $ 5,885,456         $ (2,190,883)         $ 34,610,075    

 
 
During fiscal year 2014, the Town issued enterprise fund bonds of $5,885,456 for sewer improvements, 
water mains, water meters, purchase of equipment and water meter pits. 
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NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

Bonds and Notes Payable – Enterprise Funds (Continued) 

Debt service requirements for principal and interest for enterprise fund bonds and notes payable (gross) 
in future fiscal years are as follows: 
 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest Total

2015…………….…$ 2,405,354      $ 527,467            $ 2,932,821          
2016……………..  2,414,778      532,782            2,947,560          
2017…………….… 2,376,083      496,355            2,872,438          
2018……………..  2,294,555      461,582            2,756,137          

2019…………….… 2,308,197      432,949            2,741,146          
2020…………...… 2,273,014      405,555            2,678,569          
2021………….…… 2,292,516      380,143            2,672,659          

2022……………..  2,318,693      354,765            2,673,458          
2023……………… 2,338,057      327,617            2,665,674          
2024……………… 1,347,608      301,141            1,648,749          
2025……………… 1,312,353      274,999            1,587,352          
2026……………… 1,252,294      251,128            1,503,422          
2027……………… 1,016,208      228,615            1,244,823          

2028……………… 968,802         209,792            1,178,594          
2029………….…… 617,897         193,431            811,328             
2030……………..  560,241         178,156            738,397             
2031……………… 555,241         163,395            718,636             
2032……………… 550,241         148,571            698,812             
2033……………… 545,241         133,585            678,826             
2034……………… 460,241         119,579            579,820             
2035……………… 320,241         106,616            426,857             
2036……………… 320,241         98,203              418,444             
2037……………… 320,241         89,789              410,030             
2038……………… 320,241         81,376              401,617             
2039……………… 320,241         72,962              393,203             
2040……………… 320,241         64,549              384,790             
2041……………… 320,241         56,135              376,376             
2042……………… 305,241         47,977              353,218             
2043……………… 210,241         41,688              251,929             
2044……………… 210,241         37,015              247,256             
2045……………… 210,241         32,341              242,582             
2046……………… 210,241         27,668              237,909             
2047……………… 210,241         22,995              233,236             
2048……………… 210,241         18,321              228,562             
2049……………… 210,241         13,648              223,889             
2050……………… 210,195         8,974                219,169             
2051……………… 68,422           4,302                72,724               
2052……………… 68,420           2,657                71,077               
2053……………… 36,809           1,012                37,821               

Total………….. $ 34,610,075    $ 6,949,835         $ 41,559,910         
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NOTE 9 LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED) 

The Town is subject to various debt limits by statute and may issue additional general obligation debt 
under the normal debt limit. At June 30, 2014, the Town had the following authorized and unissued 
debt: 
 

Purpose Amount
 

Wastewater Optimization………………… $ 250,000         
North Union Field Land Acq……………… 778,391         
Commercial St. Paving…………………… 600,000         
Wastewater Opt &  Exp Phase 3………… 584,544         
Town Emergency Shelter………………… 406,417         
Truro Wellhead Protection………………… 280,000         
MacMillian Pier Docks & Piers…………… 215,340         
Open Cape Connections………………… 200,000         
Roadway Paving Plan……………………… 200,000         
Commercial St. Repaving Phase 2……… 89,540           
Roadway Paving Plan……………………… 50,000           
Water Meter Pits…………………………… 25,000           
Public Works Fleet Replacement………… 22,095           
Excavator of Water Dept.………………… 5,000             

 
Total…………………………………………$ 3,706,327      

  
The Town receives subsidy assistance from the Massachusetts Water Pollution Abatement Trust 
(MWPAT).  Principal and interest on the outstanding bonds for MWPAT is subsidized over the life of the 
bonds to assist the Town in the repayment of this future debt.  During fiscal year 2014, the Town’s 
subsidy totaled approximately $486,000.  Future subsidies total approximately $3,498,000.  The amount 
of MWPAT bonds outstanding at June 30, 2014, totaled $14,835,441. 
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NOTE 10 CAPITAL LEASES 

The Town has entered into certain capital lease agreements for vehicles and equipment under which 
the vehicles and equipment will become property of the Town when all terms of the lease agreement 
are met. The agreements also contain early purchase options which would allow the Town to purchase 
the vehicles and equipment before the end of the lease terms. 
 
The following schedule presents future minimum lease payments as of June 30, 2014: 
 

Fiscal Years Governmental
Ending June 30 Activities

2015…………………………………………………  24,959                      

Total minimum lease payments…………………  24,959                      
 

Less:  amounts representing interest……………  1,350                        
 

Present value of minimum lease payments…… $ 23,609                      

 
 
Vehicles and equipment and related accumulated amortization under capital lease are as follows: 
 

Governmental
Activities

Asset:
Machinery and equipment…………………………… $ 171,387                    
Less:  accumulated amortization…………………..… (126,067)                  

Total………………………………………………… $ 45,320                      

 
 
Amortization of leased vehicles and equipment under capital leases is included with depreciation 
expense. 
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NOTE 11 OTHER POST EMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS 

Plan Description – The Town provides health, dental and life insurance coverage for its retirees and 
their survivors (hereinafter referred to as the Plan) as a single-employer defined benefit Other Post 
Employment Benefit (OPEB) plan. Chapter 32B of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend 
benefit provisions. Changes to plan design and contribution rates must be accomplished through the 
collective bargaining process. The Plan does not issue a stand alone, GAAP-basis audited financial 
report. 
 
The OPEB trust fund reported in the fiduciary funds financial statements is reported using the flow of 
economic resources measurement focus and uses the accrual basis of accounting. Contributions are 
recognized as additions in the period when they become due pursuant to formal commitments, statutory 
or contractual requirements. Benefits and refunds are recognized as deductions when incurred.  
 
The number of participants as of July 1, 2012, the latest actuarial valuation, is as follows: 
 

Active employees……………………………………………… 132
Retired employees, beneficiaries and dependents………… 223

Total……………………………………………………………… 355

 
 

Funding Policy - The contribution requirements of Plan members and the Town are established and 
may be amended by the Town.  The required health and dental insurance (including Medicare Part B) 
contribution rates of Plan members and the Town are 20% and 80%, respectively. The Plan members 
and the Town contribute 50% and 50%, respectively, towards a $1,000 term life insurance premium. 
The Town currently contributes enough money to the Plan to satisfy current obligations on a pay-as-you-
go basis. The costs of administering the Plan are paid by the Town.  
 
Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation - The Town’s annual OPEB cost (expense) is 
calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the employer, an actuarially determined 
amount that is calculated in accordance with the parameters set forth in GASB Statement #45. The 
ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal cost 
each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 
thirty years.   
 
The following table shows the components of the Town’s annual OPEB cost for the year, the actual 
amount contributed to the plan, and changes in the Town’s net OPEB obligation: 
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Amount

Annual required contribution………………………………… $ 2,107,837            
Interest on net OPEB obligation……………………………… 463,995               
Adjustment to annual required contribution……………… (376,327)              

Annual OPEB cost……………………………………………… 2,195,505            
Contributions made…………………………………………… (1,859,366)           

Increase in net OPEB obligation……………………………… 336,139               
Net OPEB obligation at beginning of year…………………  10,310,989          

Net OPEB obligation at end of year………………………… $ 10,647,128          

 
Trend information regarding annual OPEB cost, the percentage of the annual OPEB cost contributed 
and the net OPEB obligation is as follows: 

 
Annual Percentage Net

Fiscal Year OPEB Cost of AOPEBC OPEB
Ending (AOPEBC) Contributed Obligation

June 30, 2012…………… 4,666,423        48.4% 9,539,376          
June 30, 2013……………  2,108,618        63.4% 10,310,989        
June 30, 2014…………… 2,195,505        84.7% 10,647,128        

  
Funded Status and Funding Progress – The funded status of the Plan at June 30, 2012, the most 
recent actuarial valuation, was as follows: 

 
Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (A) (B) (B-A) (A/B) (C) ((B-A)/C)

07/01/12 $ 56,649                         $ 28,932,161                  $ 28,875,512                  0.2% $ 10,358,998                  279%

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and 
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include 
assumptions about future employment, mortality, and the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined 
regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of the employer are 
subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates 
are made about the future.   

 
Methods and Assumptions - Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the 
substantive Plan (the Plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of 
benefits provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs 
between the employer and Plan members to that point.  The actuarial methods and assumptions used 
include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the 
actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
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NOTE 11 OTHER POST EMPLOYEMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)  

The significant methods and assumptions as of the latest actuarial valuation are as follows: 
 

Valuation date:  June 30, 2012 
 
Actuarial cost method: Projected Unit Credit 
 
Amortization method: Amortization payments increasing at 4.0% 
 
Remaining amortization period: 30 years (open) 
 
Interest discount rate: 4.5% 
 
Healthcare/Medical cost trend rate: 8.0% decreasing by 0.5% for 6 years to an ultimate 
 level of 5.0% per year 
 
Projected salary increases: 4.0% annually   

 
 

Allocation of AOPEBC – AOPEBC costs were allocated to the Town’s functions as follows: 
 

Governmental Activities:
General government………………………………………$ 241,681                   
Public safety………………………………………………  740,246                   
Education…………………………………………………  535,104                   
Public works………………………………………………  361,226                   
Health and human services……………………………  62,328                     
Culture and recreation……………………………………  97,366                     

Total AOPEBC - governmental activities…………………  2,037,951                

Business-Type Activities:
Water enterprise fund………..…………………………  131,552                   
Wastewater enterprise fund………..……………………  26,002                     

Total AOPEBC………………………………………………… $ 2,195,505                
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NOTE 12 FUND BALANCES 

The constraints on fund balances as listed in aggregate in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet are 
detailed as follows: 

 
Nonmajor Total

Governmental Governmental
General Funds Funds

Nonspendable:
Permanent fund principal……………………$ -                $ 356,088            $ 356,088            

Sub-total - Nonspendable………………  -                 356,088             356,088            

Restricted:   
Debt service…………..………………………  258,967    -                        258,967            
Community preservation……………………  -                 1,932,143         1,932,143         
Land Bank………………………..…………… -                 1,058,175         1,058,175         
Tourism………………………………………  952,020            952,020            
Affordable housing…………………………… -                466,615            466,615            
Capital…………………………………………  -                20,697              20,697              
General government…………..……………  -                424,434            424,434            
Public safety…………………………………  -                264,063            264,063            
Airport…………………………...……………  -                53,300              53,300              
Education……………………………………… -                168,115            168,115            
Public works…………………………………  -                1,400,108         1,400,108         
Health and human services…………………  -                15,235              15,235              
Culture and recreation………………..……… -                406,995            406,995            

Sub-total - Restricted……………………  258,967    7,161,900         7,420,867         

Committed:   
Subsequent year's expenditures……………  157,476     -                        157,476            
Continuing appropriations…………………… 920,676     -                        920,676            
Capital stabilization…………………………… -                 537,624            537,624            

Sub-total - Committed…………………… 1,078,152 537,624            1,615,776         

Assigned:   
Encumbrances…………………….…………  88,936       -                        88,936              

Sub-total - Assigned……………………… 88,936      -                        88,936              

Unassigned………………………………………  3,117,942  -                        3,117,942         
  

Total fund balance………………………………$ 4,543,997 $ 8,055,612         $ 12,599,609       
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NOTE 13 STABILIZATION FUNDS 

The Town maintains a general stabilization fund that was established under MGL Chapter 40, Section 
5B. Appropriations in and out of the stabilization fund require two-thirds vote of Town Meeting. 
Investment income is retained by the fund. 
 
The balance of the stabilization fund as of June 30, 2014 totals $1,133,971 and is reported as 
unassigned fund balance in the general fund. 
 
 
NOTE 14 RISK FINANCING 

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of 
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Town carries commercial insurance.   
 
Health Insurance 

The Town participates in a health insurance risk pool administered by the Cape Cod Municipal Health 
Group (Group). The Group offers a variety of premium based plans to its members with each 
participating governmental unit charged a premium for coverage based on rates established by the 
Group. The Town is obligated to pay the Group its required premiums and, in the event the Group is 
terminated, its proportionate share of a deficit, should one exist. 
 
Workers’ Compensation 

The Town is self-insured for workers’ compensation claims for certain public safety employees. There 
were no outstanding liabilities related to these self-insured claims as of June 30, 2013 and June 30, 
2014, nor were any claims incurred or paid during fiscal years 2013 and 2014. 
 
For all other Town employees, the Town participates in a premium-based workers’ compensation plan. 
The amount of claim settlements has not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the previous three 
fiscal years. 
 
Unemployment Insurance 

The Town is self-insured for its unemployment insurance activities. There were no outstanding liabilities 
related to these self-insured claims as of June 30, 2013 and June 30, 2014, nor were any claims 
incurred or paid during fiscal years 2013 and 2014. 
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NOTE 15 PENSION PLAN 

Plan Description 

The Town contributes to the Barnstable County Retirement Association (Association), a cost-sharing 
multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Barnstable Contributory Retirement 
Board.  Substantially all employees of the Town are members of the Association, except for public 
school teachers and certain administrators who are members of the Massachusetts Teachers 
Retirement Association. 
 
Chapter 32 of the MGL assigns authority to establish and amend benefit provisions of the plan. The 
Association provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Cost-
of-living adjustments granted between 1981 and 1997 and any increases in other benefits imposed by 
the Commonwealth’s state law during those years are borne by the Commonwealth and are deposited 
into the pension fund. Cost-of-living adjustments granted after 1997 must be authorized by the 
Barnstable Contributory Retirement Board and are borne by the Association. The Association issues a 
publicly available report in accordance with guidelines established by the Commonwealth’s Public 
Employee Retirement Administration Commission, which differ from generally accepted accounting 
principles. That report may be obtained by contacting the Association located at 750 Attucks Lane, 
Hyannis, Massachusetts, 02601. 
 
Funding Policy 

Chapter 32 of MGL governs the contributions of plan members and the Town. Plan members are 
required to contribute to the System at rates ranging from 5% to 11% of annual covered compensation. 
The Town is required to pay into the System its share of the system-wide actuarial determined 
contribution that is apportioned among the employers based on annual covered payroll. The Town’s 
contributions to the System for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2014, 2013, and 2012 were $1,299,590, 
$1,248,743, and $1,110,296, respectively, which equaled its required contribution for each fiscal year. 

 
 

NOTE 16 MASSACHUSETTS TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

Public school teachers and certain administrators are members of the Massachusetts Teachers 
Retirement System, to which the Town does not contribute. Pension benefits and administrative 
expenses paid by the Teachers Retirement Board are the legal responsibility of the Commonwealth. 
The amount of these on-behalf payments totaled approximately $1,346,775 for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2014, and accordingly, are reported in the general fund as intergovernmental revenues and 
pension expenditures. 

 
 

NOTE 17 COMMITMENTS 

The Town has entered into, or is planning on entering into contracts totaling approximately $3,000,000 
for various capital projects and purchases including the wastewater optimization and expansion 
program, water system capital improvements, Commercial Street maintenance, building repairs, and 
land acquisitions.   
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NOTE 18 CONTINGENCIES 

Various legal actions and claims are pending against the Town. Litigation is subject to many 
uncertainties, and the outcome of individual litigated matters is not always predictable.  Although the 
amount of liability, if any, at June 30, 2014, cannot be ascertained, management believes any resulting 
liability should not materially affect the financial position of the Town at June 30, 2014. 
 
The Town participates in a number of federal award programs.  Although the grant programs have been 
audited in accordance with the provisions of the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996 through June 30, 
2014, these programs are still subject to financial and compliance audits. The amount, if any, of 
expenditures which may be disallowed by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, 
although the Town expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial. 

 
 

NOTE 19 FUTURE IMPLEMENTATION OF GASB PRONOUNCEMENTS 

The GASB has issued the following statements: 
 

• Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions – an Amendment of 
GASB Statement No. 27, which is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2015. The 
implementation of this Statement will represent a significant change in the accounting and 
reporting of pension expense and the related liability. For the first time, the Authority will be 
required to recognize its long-term obligation for pension benefits as a liability and to more 
comprehensively measure the annual costs of pension benefits. The implementation of this 
Statement also expands pension related note disclosures and required supplementary 
information. 

 

• Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of Government Operations, which 
is required to be implemented during fiscal year 2015. Management does not believe the 
implementation of this Statement will impact the basic financial statements. 

 
• Statement No. 71, Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement 
Date – an amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, which is required to be implemented during 
fiscal year 2015.  The implementation of this Statement will require the Town, in the transition 
year of Statement No. 68, to recognize contributions to defined benefit pension plans between 
the measurement date of the reported net pension liability and the end of the government’s 
reporting period as a deferred outflow of resources. 

 
These pronouncements will be implemented by their respective implementation dates. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

GENERAL FUND - STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND 
BALANCE (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) - BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 

 
Prior Year  

Encumbrances Supplemental
and Continuing Original Appropriations Final
Appropriations Budget and Transfers Budget

REVENUES
Real Estate and Personal Property Taxes $ -                        $ 17,374,096   $ -                      $ 17,374,096        
Motor Vehicle and Other Excise Taxes  -                        452,500        -                      452,500             
Hotel/Motel Tax and Meals Tax  -                        975,998        -                      975,998             
Tax and Utility Liens  -                        -                    -                      -                        
Payments in Lieu of Taxes  -                        3,005            -                      3,005                
Parking  -                        1,750,000     -                      1,750,000          
Solid Waste  -                        266,000        -                      266,000             
Intergovernmental  -                        532,225        -                      532,225             
Penalties and Interest on Taxes  -                        191,300        -                      191,300             
Licenses and Permits  -                        552,200        -                      552,200             
Fines and Forfeitures  -                        131,600        -                      131,600             
Departmental and Other  -                        345,768        -                      345,768             
Investment Income  -                        16,630          -                      16,630              

Total Revenus  -                         22,591,322    -                       22,591,322        
 

EXPENDITURES  
Current:  

General Government  96,487               3,020,895     156,021          3,273,403          
Public Safety  91,700               5,102,527     29,275            5,223,502          
Educaiton  1,303,763          3,450,298     53,922            4,807,983          
Public Works  118,134             2,412,692     1,261,029       3,791,855          
Airport -                        98,450          -                      98,450              
Health and Human Services  10,789               476,375        9,640              496,804             
Culture and Recreation  54,218               510,463        26,476            591,157             
Pension Benefits  -                        1,300,201     -                      1,300,201          
Employee Benefits  -                        4,246,102     (224,972)         4,021,130          
Property and Liability Insurance  -                        584,174        -                      584,174             

State and County Charges  -                        678,602        -                      678,602             
Debt Service: -                      

Principal  -                        1,537,232     107,255          1,644,487          
Interest  -                        548,745        (36,280)           512,465             

Total Expenditures  1,675,091           23,966,756    1,382,366        27,024,213        
 

EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES  
OVER EXPENDITURES  (1,675,091)          (1,375,434)     (1,382,366)       (4,432,891)        

 
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)  

Transfer In  -                        1,296,606     -                      1,296,606          
Premium from Issuance of Bonds and Notes  -                        -                    -                      -                        
Transfers Out  -                        (36,046)         -                      (36,046)             

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses)  -                         1,260,560      -                       1,260,560          
 

NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE  (1,675,091)          (114,874)        (1,382,366)       (3,172,331)        
 

Fund Balance - Beginning of Year  4,091,186          4,091,186     4,091,186       4,091,186          
 

FUND BALANCE - END OF YEAR $ 2,416,095          $ 3,976,312     $ 2,708,820       $ 918,855             

See accompanying notes to required supplementary information.  
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Current Year Actual and
Encumbrances Encumbrances Variance
and Continuing and Continuing Positive/

Actual Appropriations Appropriations (Negative)

$ 17,080,026    $ -                        $ 17,080,026        $ (294,070)     
517,162         -                        517,162             64,662         

1,026,046      -                        1,026,046          50,048         
117,164         -                        117,164             117,164       

5,959             -                        5,959                 2,954           
1,750,283      -                        1,750,283          283             

240,213         -                        240,213             (25,787)       
550,553         -                        550,553             18,328         
112,363         -                        112,363             (78,937)       
643,875         -                        643,875             91,675         
127,055         -                        127,055             (4,545)         
454,414         -                        454,414             108,646       

6,328             -                        6,328                 (10,302)       

 22,631,441     -                         22,631,441         40,119         

2,930,729      231,267             3,161,996          111,407       
4,908,733      190,465             5,099,198          124,304       
4,427,515      329,077             4,756,592          51,391         
3,474,903      193,226             3,668,129          123,726       

97,361           -                        97,361               1,089           
435,733         11,897               447,630             49,174         
539,177         53,680               592,857             (1,700)         

1,303,759      -                        1,303,759          (3,558)         
3,572,168      -                        3,572,168          448,962       

653,759         -                        653,759             (69,585)       
626,508         -                        626,508             52,094         

1,644,487      -                        1,644,487          -                  
459,163         -                        459,163             53,302         

 25,073,995     1,009,612           26,083,607         940,606       

 (2,442,554)      (1,009,612)          (3,452,166)          980,725       

1,282,703      -                        1,282,703          (13,903)       
109,319         -                        109,319             109,319       
(39,210)          -                        (39,210)              (3,164)         

 1,352,812       -                         1,352,812           92,252         

 (1,089,742)      (1,009,612)          (2,099,354)          1,072,977    

4,091,186      4,091,186          4,091,186          -                  

$ 3,001,444      $ 3,081,574          $ 1,991,832          $ 1,072,977    
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 
 
 

PENSION PLAN SCHEDULES 
 

The following schedules provide information related to the Association as a whole, for which the Town is 
one participating employer. 
 

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS (ASSOCIATION) 

Actuarial UAAL as a
Actuarial Accrued Unfunded Percentage

Actuarial Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (A) (B) (B-A) (A/B) (C) ((B-A)/C)

01/01/14 $ 776,973,700 $ 1,353,810,101 $ 576,836,401 57.4% $ 253,920,106 227.2%
01/01/12 $ 651,063,981 $ 1,173,483,848 $ 522,419,867 55.5% $ 239,437,303 218.2%
01/01/10 554,876,554 1,030,210,321 475,333,767 53.9% 234,374,075 202.8%
01/01/09 520,089,855 966,564,614    446,474,759 53.8% 249,971,296 178.6%
01/01/07 517,396,087 825,863,068    308,466,981 62.6% 226,391,633 136.3%
01/01/06 465,637,984 765,747,723    300,109,739 60.8% 215,474,180 139.3%

 
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS (ASSOCIATION) 

Annually
Required Percentage of

Year Ended Contributions ARC
December 31 (ARC) Contributed (%)

2007 $ 34,360,912    100
2008 36,982,873    100
2009 39,899,322    100
2010 43,893,051    100
2011 43,807,158    100
2012 46,702,087    100
2013 49,504,212    100

 
The following schedule provides information related to the Town’s portion of the System’s ARC: 
 

TOWN SHARE OF SYSTEM ARC 

Fiscal Year Percentage of Town ARC
Ended ARC as a Percentage of

June 30, ARC Contributed (%) Association ARC (%)

2008 $ 817,971     100 2.4%
2009 870,500     100 2.4%
2010 964,223     100 2.4%
2011 1,057,398  100 2.4%
2012 1,110,296  100 2.5%
2013 1,248,743  100 2.7%
2014 1,299,590  100 2.6%
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN, MASSACHUSETTS 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 
 
 

OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS SCHEDULE 
 

 
The following schedule provides information related to the Town’s other post employment benefits plan. 
 

SCHEDULES OF FUNDING PROGRESS 

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of Projected Unit AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll

Date (A) (B) (B-A) (A/B) (C) ((B-A)/C)

06/30/12 $ 56,649    $ 28,932,161      $ 28,875,512 0.2% $ 10,358,998 279%
06/30/10  -               71,400,315       71,400,315 -             N/A N/A
06/30/08  -               63,376,040       63,376,040 -             N/A N/A

 
 

A change in the plan election assumption at age 65 for the Town resulted in a significant decrease in its 
actuarial accrued liability (AAL) at June 30, 2012 compared to the AAL at June 30, 2010.  The assumed 
percentage of all retirees who elect a Medicare Supplement plan upon age 65 was increased from 50% 
to 95%, based on recent enrollment experience.  This was the effect of Massachusetts General Law 
Chapter 32B, Section 18A which requires mandatory enrollment in Medicare at age 65. 
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TOWN OF PROVINCETOWN 
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2014 
 
 
 

 
NOTE A BUDGETARY – GAAP RECONCILIATION 

For budgetary financial reporting purposes, the Uniform Massachusetts Accounting System basis of 
accounting (established by the Commonwealth) is followed, which differs from the GAAP basis of 
accounting. A reconciliation of budgetary-basis to GAAP-basis results for the general fund for the fiscal 
year ended June 30, 2014, is presented below: 
 

Other
Financing Fund

Revenues Expenditures Sources (Uses) Balance

Budgetary basis as reported on the schedule of
  revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
  balance - budget and actual……………………………………… $ 22,631,441   $ 26,030,289       $ 1,299,494          $ 1,991,832   

Adjustments
  Net change in recording 60-day receipts………………………  (83,887)         -                        -                         411,476      
  Net change in recording tax refunds payable…………………… 217,717        -                        -                         -                  
  To record activity for MWPAT subsidies………………………… 14,353          14,353              -                         -                  
  To record MTRS on-behalf payments…………………………… 1,346,775     1,346,775         -                         -                  
  Net change in recording other expenditures…………...……… -                    1,582                -                         (2,894)         
  To record encumbrances and continuing appropriations…..… -                    (1,009,612)        -                         1,009,612   
  Activity of stabilization fund recorded in the general fund  
    for GAAP purposes………………………………...…………… 2,290            -                        -                         1,133,971   

GAAP basis as reported on the statement of revenues,
  expenditures and changes in fund balances…………………… $ 24,128,689   $ 26,383,387       $ 1,299,494          $ 4,543,997   
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CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 
CLAconnect.com 

To the Honorable Board of Selectmen 
Town of Provincetown, Massachusetts 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements of the Town of Provincetown, Massachusetts 
(Town) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2014, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in 
the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, we considered the Town‘s internal control over 
financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of 
expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Town‘s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the Town’s internal control. 

However, during our audit we became aware of deficiencies in internal control (other than significant deficiencies 
and material weaknesses) that are opportunities to strengthen your internal control and improve the efficiency of 
your operations. The memorandum that accompanies this letter summarizes our comments and 
recommendations regarding those matters. A separate communication dated March 20, 2015 and titled, 
Independent Auditors’ Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based 
on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards, contains our written 
communication of a material weakness in the Town’s internal control. This letter does not affect our report dated 
March 20, 2015, on the financial statements of the Town.  

We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already discussed these 
comments and recommendations with Town personnel, and we will be pleased to discuss them in further detail 
at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these matters, or to assist you in implementing the 
recommendations. 

The Town’s written responses to the matters identified in our audit have not been subjected to the audit 
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them. 

This communication is intended solely for the information and use of management, the Board of Selectmen and 
others within the organization and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP 

Burlington, Massachusetts 
March 20, 2015 
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Comments and Recommendations 

Provincetown Public Pier Corporation – Discretely Presented Component Unit of the Town 

Comment 

Discretely presented component units are entities that are legally separate from the Town, but are financially 
accountable to the Town, or whose relationships with the Town are such that exclusion would cause the Town’s 
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.  The Provincetown Public Pier Corporation (Pier Corp) meets 
the requirement of a discretely presented component unit of the Town. 

The Pier Corp is a body politic and corporate organized and existing under Chapter 13 of the Acts of 2000, as 
amended by Chapter 260 of the Acts of 2002 of the Commonwealth of Massachusetts.  It is a public 
instrumentality separate from the Town and is not an authority, board or committee of the Town.  The Pier Corp 
was created in part for the purpose of managing and regulating all activities occurring on MacMillan Pier, Town 
owned property, in which it leases from the Town.   The Pier Corp is managed by a board of directors consisting 
of five members, appointed by the Board of Selectmen of the Town.  

The Pier Corp is suppose to have a separate audit of its financial statements performed each year. However; the 
audit for fiscal 2014 was not completed in time for the Town to include the Pier Corp as a discretely presented 
component unit in its financial statements. This is a departure from accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America (GAAP) because the nature and significance of the Pier Corp’s relationship with the 
Town is such that exclusion causes the Town’s financial statements to be misleading. 

Recommendation 

We recommend the Town work closely with the Pier Corp to ensure that an audit of the Pier Corp’s financial 
statements is completed in a time so that the Town may include it as a discretely presented component unit in its 
financial statements. 

Management’s Response 

The Pier has released their audit statements through June 30, 2012.  FY 2013 and FY 2014 are expected shortly.  
Going forward it is expected that the Pier Corp’s financial statements will be completed in a time so the Town 
may include their results. 
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Treasurer’s Cash Book - Automation 

Comment 

Currently, the Treasurer uses Spreadsheet Software (Microsoft Excel) to maintain the treasurer’s cash book.  
While Microsoft Excel is one solution for maintaining an automated treasurer’s cash book, a relational database 
program (QuickBooks) is proven more effective and efficient to maintain and manage the accounting of bank 
accounts.   

Limitations of Spreadsheet Software (Microsoft Excel): 

• Reporting is difficult and requires setting up pivot tables or sorting data.
• When working, accidental changes are the common problem. There is no instant alert system.
• Potential for losing data by deleting a row or column by mistake.
• Potential of losing data if the file is not properly saved.
• Roll forwarding schedules, copying and pasting formulas are susceptible to human error.
• Read only option is really cumbersome and area should be kept on enlarging as the data increases.
• Changing the data may be time-consuming.
• Multiple users difficulty—Sharing the document is impossible
• Tracking the users is a challenge
• Partial access to users is impossible
• Backup is a potential risk. There will be no prompting for backup.

Benefits of using relational database software (QuickBooks): 

• Standardized design and procedures for entering cash transactions: receipts, disbursements and transfers.
• Relational database is designed to link tables of related data together, such as dates, accounts, and

transaction types. This allows for easier financial reporting.
• Whenever data changes a relational database alerts if the changes are to be saved.
• Relational databases are safer because they write date to the hard drive immediately.  .
• Setting up multiple users, restricting access is simple.
• Provides an Audit Trail. .
• Backup system with promptings, automatic backup.

Recommendation 

We recommend the Treasurer consider using QuickBooks or MUNIS Cash Management System to maintain the 
treasurer’s cash book. 

Management’s Response 

At this time the Treasurer is still reviewing her options in order to determine the best means of cash management 
for her.  Cash is correctly reconciled every month, the decision is what method is the most accurate and efficient. 
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Excess Bank Accounts 

Comment 

The Treasurer maintains separate bank accounts for many special revenue funds for which separate bank 
accounts are not required by law or otherwise.  These separate bank accounts serve no other business purpose. 
However, maintaining these bank accounts is time consuming for the treasurer because she is constantly making 
transfers of monies in and out of these bank accounts to match cash receipts and disbursements made in and out 
of these funds. 

Recommendation 

We recommend that each bank account maintained by the Treasurer serve a specific business and/or investment 
purpose and any excess or unnecessary bank accounts be closed.    

Management’s Response 

The Treasurer is currently evaluating the purpose behind each account.  One account has already been closed and 
we expect that more bank accounts will be consolidated and unnecessary bank accounts will be closed. 
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Payroll Process 

Comment 

The Town uses the Harper’s Millennium software to process payroll.  Millennium is a PC based software that is 
designed to provide quick and easy data entry for generating the payroll.  However, we noted that the payroll 
process overall is time consuming and cumbersome.  We found that the Town has difficulty in recording the 
payroll transactions on the Town’s accounting ledgers (MUNIS).  Currently, the Payroll Administrator performs 
numerous manual procedures including building Excel worksheets to produce a payroll warrant and record the 
warrant into MUNIS.  The process is labor intensive and repetitive. 

The Harper’s Millennium software has the capability of exporting the payroll information easily into MUNIS to 
generate the payroll warrant which would be a significant time savings in the process.   

Recommendation 

We recommend the Town use the import/export function between Millennium and MUNIS to expedite the 
recording of payroll into MUNIS. 

Management’s Response 

The payroll and employee benefits manager has not yet addressed this recommendation. 
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Transfer Station Receivables 

Comment 

The Town’s transfer station bills certain customers for use of the facilities and services.  To account for this 
activity, the transfer station maintains its own accounts receivable ledger that is maintained independently from 
the Town’s general ledger software.  We identified that the receivables committed/billed by the transfer station 
are not submitted to the Town Accountant and recorded on the general ledger.  Proper internal controls require 
all receivables to be accounted for and recorded on the general ledger.   

Recommendation 

We recommend the implementation of a process whereby all billing and collection activity of the transfer station 
is forwarded to the Accounting Department so the activity can be tracked and maintained on the general ledger.  
Additionally, we recommend that the Town consider using the MUNIS general accounts receivable module to bill 
and collect these receivables.  Implementation of this recommendation will provide independent verification of 
the detailed accounts receivable balance and strengthen internal control over the process. 

Management’s Response 

All billing and collection activity has now been forwarded to the Accounting Department.  We are researching the 
idea of doing the billing through MUNIS. 
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Federal Grant Accounting 

Comment 

We identified the following deficiencies of internal controls over the accounting for federal funded grants: 

• The Towns chart of accounts is not designed in a manner that clearly identified federal grant revenues
and related expenditures.  Therefore, it is made more difficult to comply with the reporting requirements
of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations.

• Federal grant revenues and expenditures were commingled with related locally funded capital projects.
This made it difficult to ensure compliance with the federal grant requirements.

• Numerous journal entries were made to reclassify expenditures between federal grants, state grants and
capital projects.  Some of the journal entries with not supported by adequate explanation and supporting
documentation.  Also, some of the reclassifications were for expenditures in a different accounting
period.  This makes it more difficult to ensure compliance with federal grant spending and reporting
requirements.

Commingling federal grant transactions with non-federal grant transactions and not having adequate supporting 
documentation for journal entries increases the risk that the Town will not comply with the grant requirements 
and later the expenditures may be deemed non-reimbursable.   

Recommendation 

We recommend that the Town segregate federal grant revenues and expenditures from other revenues and 
expenditures by creating accounts that are clearly identified as federal and posting transactions into accounts 
separate from non-federal transactions. 

We recommend that the Town be very careful when recording the original federal grant transactions so as to 
reduce the need for adjustments and reclassifications.   

Management’s Response 

Previously we recorded all expenses paid by an article and a matching grant to the same account.  We have 
changed our accounting records so that expenses paid from an article are recorded separately from expenses paid 
by a grant, even if they are the same project. 
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Police Extra Duty Details

Comment 

The Police Department is currently responsible for billing and collecting police details revenues.  On a monthly 
basis, bills are submitted to police detail customers and collections are processed by Police Department personnel.  
We noted that Police detail billings are not reported to the Accountant on a regular basis.  As a result, the 
Accountant cannot review the activity and record a receivable on the general ledger.  This is a deficiency in 
internal controls over financial reporting. 

Recommendation 

We recommend that the police detail activity (billings and collections) be reported to the Accountant monthly; 
and the Accountant record and maintain the outstanding accounts receivable amount on the general ledger.   

We recommend the Town consider using the MUNIS general billing module to bill and collect the police detail 
revenues.  The module is fully integrated with the Town’s general ledger and revenue ledger and will eliminate 
the duplication of effort to maintain two systems and strengthen internal controls over billing, collecting and 
financial reporting of police details. 

Management’s Response 

We are working on consolidating our accounting software and eventually transferring outside billing modules to 
MUNIS.  We will first need to set up the police department on MUNIS and then train them on the billing module.  
It is hoped this will be complete in FY 2016. 
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Student Activity Funds 

Comment 

As noted in prior years’ management letters, the following deficiencies have not been resolved related to the 
accounting for student activity funds: 

• There is a variance between the Student Activity fund balance maintained by the School Department and
that of the general ledger.

• There is a variance between the Student Activity fund balances maintained by the School Department
and the Student Activity cash balances maintained by the Treasurer.

• Massachusetts General Laws (MGL) Chapter 71, Section 47, which establishes various guidelines, related
to student activity funds, states the following: “There shall be an annual audit of the student activity
funds which shall be conducted in accordance with procedures as agreed upon between the school
committee and the auditor based upon guidelines issued by the department of education.”  An annual
audit or agreed upon procedures is not being performed on the Town’s student activity funds.  Based
upon the MGL requirement and the inherent risks associated with student activity funds, we believe that
the performance of an audit or agreed-upon procedures on the Town’s student activity funds would be
prudent.

Recommendation 

We recommend the Town resolve the variance between the accounting records of the School Department and 
those of the Town Accountant and Treasurer. 

We recommend that the Town have an audit of its student activity funds in compliance with MGL. 

Management’s Response 

We have worked on reconciling all the school accounts, but unfortunately having gone back as far as twelve years 
we find the accounts were out of balance back then.  The Finance Director will talk to the Superintendent of 
Schools and recommend that they make an adjusting entry in their records to bring the accounts into balance. 

8 



Financial Policies and Procedures Manual 

Comment 

We believe that preparation of a formal policy and procedures manual would improve and standardize the 
Town’s financial policies and procedures.  Inherent in any organization that operates without formalized written 
procedures are inconsistencies in everyday policies and procedures.  The number of such inconsistencies can be 
minimized by the written codification of policies and procedures and insistence on adherence to them.   

Such a manual should include policies and procedures relative to all financial functions and processes, including, 
but not limited to, the following: 

 Cash receipts
 Cash disbursements

o Payroll
o Vendor

 Procurement
 Accounts payable
 Budget
 Grants administration
 Capital assets
 Month-end and year-end closing and reporting
 Property tax commitments and accounts payable
 Motor vehicle, boat excise and other accounts receivable
 Fraud
 Financial reserve
 Investment Policy

The manual should also clearly define the objectives, responsibilities and authorizations for all employees/job 
positions. 

The use of written policies, procedures, and job descriptions in conjunction with specific assignment of 
responsibilities would increase supervisory personnel’s effectiveness.  Such written documents would decrease 
the time spent on supervision of clerical personnel and in attempts to define job responsibilities on each occasion 
of employee turnover. 

Recommendation 

We recommend management design and implement a formal financial policies and procedures manual.  

Management’s Response 

We expect the manual will be completed by June 30, 2015. 
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Risk Assessment and Monitoring 

Comment 

When internal controls are initially implemented, they are usually designed to adequately safeguard assets.  
However, over time, these controls can become ineffective due to changes in technology, operations, etc.  In 
addition, changes in personnel and structure, as well as the addition of new programs and services, can add risks 
that previously did not exist.  As a result, all municipalities must periodically perform a risk assessment to 
anticipate, identify, analyze and manage the risk of asset misappropriation.  Risk assessment (which includes 
fraud risk assessment), is one element of internal control. 

The risk assessment should be performed by management-level employees who have extensive knowledge of the 
Town’s operations.  Ordinarily, the management-level employees would conduct interviews or lead group 
discussions with personnel who have knowledge of the Town’s operations, its environment, and its processes.  
The risk assessment process should consider the Town’s vulnerability to misappropriation of assets.  It should 
also address operations that involve heightened levels of risk.  When conducting the assessment, the following 
questions should be considered: 

 What assets are susceptible to misappropriation?
 What departments receive cash receipts?
 What departments have movable inventory?
 What operations are the most complex?
 How could assets be stolen?
 Are there any known internal control weaknesses that would allow misappropriation of assets to occur

and remain undetected?
 How could potential misappropriation of assets be concealed?
 What prior internal control issues could still continue to be problematic?

Once the areas vulnerable to risks have been identified, a review of the Town’s systems, procedures, and existing 
controls related to these areas should be conducted.  The Town should consider what additional controls (if any) 
need to be implemented to reduce risk. 

After risk has been assessed, periodic monitoring of the identified risk areas must be performed in order to 
evaluate the controls that have been implemented to mitigate the risks.  Since control-related policies and 
procedures tend to deteriorate over time, the monitoring process ensures that controls are fully operational and 
effective. 

Recommendation 

We recommend management develop and implement a risk assessment program to periodically anticipate, 
identify, analyze, and manage the risk of asset misappropriation.  The risk assessment program should be 
formally documented and become part of the Town’s financial policies and procedures manual. 

We recommend management develop and implement a monitoring program to periodically evaluate the 
operational effectiveness of internal controls.  The monitoring process should be documented in order to facilitate 
the evaluation of controls and to identify improvements that need to be made. 

Management’s Response 

We implemented a Risk Assessment Program in FY 2015. 
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Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST 

Monday, June 22, 2015  

JOINT MEETING – HARBOR COMMITTEE 
Regulation Changes and Harbor Access Gift Fund for Kayak Racks 
Requested by: Board of Selectmen            Action Sought: Discussion/Approval 

Proposed Motion(s) 

 
MOVE that the Board of Selectmen vote to approve the changes to Chapter 2 
definitions of resident, non-resident taxpayer and occupant as written in the June 
22nd recommendation letter from the Harbor Committee. 

 
MOVE that the Board of Selectmen vote to approve the changes to 2-8-3, 2-8-4 and  
2-9-1 regarding references to mooring field mapping and Army Corp definitions as 
written in the June 22nd recommendation letter from the Harbor Committee. 

 
MOVE that the Board of Selectmen vote to approve the changes to 3-2-1, 3-2-2, 3-2-3 
and Appendix B regarding seasonal use of the beaches for boat storage as written in 
the June 22nd recommendation letter from the Harbor Committee. 

 
MOVE that the Board of Selectmen vote to approve the recommendation of the 
Harbor Committee to expend an amount not to exceed $5,300 from the Harbor 
Access Gift Fund for the construction of portable kayak racks at the back of the 
trailer parking area at West End ramp. 
 

Additional Information 

See attached documents. 
 

Board Action 

Motion Second In favor Opposed Disposition 

     

 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 
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Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST 

Monday, June 22, 2015 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN APPOINTMENTS 
Economic Development Committee 
Requested by:  Board of Selectmen                                     Action Sought:  Approval 

Proposed Motion(s) 

Move that the Board of Selectmen vote to appoint Bryan Armstrong as a _______ member 
to the Economic Development Committee with a term to expire on __________________. 
 
Move that the Board of Selectmen vote to appoint Karen Capotto as a _________ member 
to the Economic Development Committee with a term to expire on __________________. 
 
Move that the Board of Selectmen vote to appoint Regina Cassidy as a ________ member 
to the Economic Development Committee with a term to expire on __________________. 
 
Move that the Board of Selectmen vote to appoint Jeffrey Krainess as a ________ member 
to the Economic Development Committee with a term to expire on __________________. 
 
Move that the Board of Selectmen vote to appoint Michael Miller as a __________ member 
to the Economic Development Committee with a term to expire on ___________________. 
 
Move that the Board of Selectmen vote to appoint Steven Latasa-Nicks as a ____ member 
to the Economic Development Committee with a term to expire on __________________. 

Additional Information 

See attached applications. 
(1) Regular position with term to expire on December 31, 2016 
(2) Regular positions with terms to expire on December 31, 2017 
(2) Regular positions with terms to expire on December 31, 2018 
(1) Alternate position with term to expire on December 31, 2016. 
   

Board Action  

Motion Second Yea Nay Abstain Disposition 

      

 _______________________________________________________________________ 
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Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST 

Monday, June 22, 2015    

APPOINTMENT 
Chamber of Commerce Representative to the Visitor Service Board 
 Requested by:  Doug Johnstone, Town Clerk                Action Sought:  Approval 

Proposed Motion(s) 

Move that the Board of Selectmen vote to appoint Robert Costa as the 

Provincetown Chamber of Commerce Representative to the Visitor Service Board 

with a term to expire on June 30, 2018. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Additional Information 

See attached application.   
 

Board Action  

Motion Second Yea Nay Abstain Disposition 

      

 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 
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Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST 

Monday, June 22, 2015    

BOARD OF SELECTMEN REAPPOINTMENTS 
Board of Selectmen End of Fiscal Year 2015 Reappointments 
 Requested by:  Doug Johnstone, Town Clerk                Action Sought:  Approval 

Proposed Motion(s) 

Move that the Board of Selectmen vote to reappoint the following Board and 

Committee members, as noted in the attached list,  to an additional three-year 

term to expire on June 30, 2018 as [submitted] [revised]. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Additional Information 

All candidates have agreed to serve another term.  
 

Board Action  

Motion Second Yea Nay Abstain Disposition 

      

 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 
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Board of Selectmen End of Fiscal Year 15 Reappointments 
 
   
 
Current board members with appointments ending June 30, 2015, who are eligible and 
wish to be reappointment: 
 
 
 

Town Board Name Position 
Animal Welfare Committee Barbara Murphy Regular 
Community Housing Council Susan Cook Regular 
Community Housing Council Louise Silver Regular 
Harbor Committee David Flattery Regular 
Harbor Committee Laura Ludwig Regular 
Harbor Committee Christopher Brooke Alternate 
Human Services Committee Gabrielle Villegas Regular 
Human Services Committee Joseph Murphy Alternate 
Open Space Committee Rebecca Matarazzi Regular 
 





















  

 
Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST 

Monday, June 22, 2015 
 

REPORT OF ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER 
Death of Dog  
Requested by: Board of Selectmen                          Action Sought: Discussion   

Proposed Motion(s) 

 
Discussion dependent – votes may be taken. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Additional Information 

See attached documents. 
 

Board Action  

Motion Second In favor Opposed Disposition 

     

 

 _____________________________________________________________________ 
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Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST  

Monday, June 22, 2015 

CONWELL STREET BICYCLE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
Contract Approval 

Requested by: Eric L. Larsen, Deputy Director, DPW                             Action Sought: Approval 

Proposed Motion(s) 

MOVE that the Board of Selectmen vote to approve and execute a contract with 
Environmental Partners Group for the “Conwell Street Bicycle Improvements 
Project”.   
 

 

 

 

 

Additional Information 

This project was bid pursuant to M.G.L. c.30, §39M as a request for design services associated with a 
public works infrastructure project.  The project was advertised in the Central Register beginning 
5/13/2015 and the Provincetown Banner on 5/14/2015 and 5/21/2015.  Sealed bids were publicly 
opened 5/28/2015 and the lowest eligible bidder was determined and selected on 6/8/2015.  (Please 
refer to the attached plans and bid opening information)   
 
The design phase of this project is fully funded through the National Parks Service (CFDA #15-916)  
 

Board Action 

Motion Second In favor Opposed Disposition 
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Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST 

Monday, June 22, 2015   

POLICE CHIEF CONTRACT 
Jim Golden 
 Requested by:  Acting Town Manager David Gardner       Action Sought:  Approval  

Proposed Motion(s) 

Pending successful negotiation of contract terms.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Additional Information 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Action  

Motion Second Yea Nay Abstain Disposition 

      

 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 
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Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST 

Monday, June 22, 2015 

FY2016 TOWN-WIDE POLICY GOALS  
Annual Goal-setting Exercise 
Requested by: Acting Town Manager David Gardner                                      Action Sought: Policy Direction  

Proposed Motion(s) 

MOVE that the Board of Selectmen vote to conduct a public hearing on Monday, July 
27, 2015, at 6 p.m. on the following proposed Town-wide Policy Goals for Fiscal Year 
2016: 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Additional Information 

 
See attached Goals for consideration.  
 
 

Board Action 

Motion Second In favor Opposed Disposition 

     

 ________________________________________________________________________ 
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Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST 

Monday, June 22, 2015 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN'S RULES OF PROCEDURE 
Adoption of Rules of Procedure 
Requested by: Acting Town Manager David Gardner                        Action Sought: Procedural 

Proposed Motion(s) 

MOVE that the Board of Selectmen vote to adopt the amendment(s) to the Rules of 

Procedure as [submitted] [revised]. 

 

 

 

 

 

Additional Information 

Attached is copy of the “Rules of Procedure.”   Section 9, thereof provides that "These 
standing procedures shall be reviewed annually, following the normal reorganization of 
each new Board of Selectmen . . . ." Section 10 provides that "(a) These standing 
procedures may be amended by a majority vote of the members present and voting at a 
regular meeting provided, however, that the proposed amendment has been submitted in 
writing at least one week prior to the date the amendment is to be voted upon. (b) An 
amendment shall be construed to mean any addition of a new procedure or deletion or 
modification of an existing procedure." 
 

Board Action 

Motion Second In favor Opposed Disposition 
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TOWN OF 
PROVINCETOWN 

 

 
 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

RULES OF PROCEDURE 
 

Amended May 22, 2006, June 28, 2010, June 11, 2012, June 10, 2014, and August 11, 2014  
 

Annual Approved Changes Date:  August 11, 2014 June 22, 2015
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SECTION 1.  OFFICERS 
 
a. The Board shall elect from its own membership, a Chairman and a Vice Chairman. Such 

election shall take place annually at the first regular meeting following the Town Election. 

  

b.            The Chairman, or in his/her absence, the Vice Chairman, shall preside at meetings of the  
 Board, and shall, subject to these rules, decide all points of procedure, unless over-ruled 

by the majority of the Board in session at the time.  The Chairman shall act as liaison 
between the Board, the Board's Secretary, and the Town Manager. 

  

c. In the absence of the Chairman, the duties of the Chair shall be performed by the Vice 
Chairman.  The typical duties and responsibilities of the Vice Chairman will then fall to the 
Selectman with the most seniority. 

  
SECTION 2.  MEETINGS 
  
a. General.  All meetings of the Board of Selectmen shall be conducted in accordance with 

Chapter 39, Section 23A, Massachusetts General Laws (Open Meeting Law); and all other 
applicable laws. 
 

b. Regular Meetings.  The Board of Selectmen and the Town Manager shall meet in Town 
Hall on the second and fourth Monday evenings of each month and at such other times as 
the Board may decide.  If the second or fourth Monday of a month falls on a holiday, the 
Board and the Town Manager shall meet on the following evening.  Unless it is executive 
session, every meeting of the Board of Selectmen shall be open to the public and to the press 
(By-Laws of the Town of Provincetown, Section 4-2-1). 

  
c.         Special Meetings.  Special meetings of the Board may be called by the Chairman with  

the concurrence of a majority of the remaining members of the Board; however, the required 
statutory forty-eight hours public notice of such a meeting may not be waived.  

  
d. Emergency Meetings.   

(1)  The Chairman may call an emergency meeting of the Board when, in the judgment of 
the Chair, immediate and/or delayed action by the Board would be contrary to the best 
interests of the Town. 

  
(2)    Matters acted upon by the Board at emergency meetings shall be made an agenda 

item at the next regular meeting of the Board for the purpose of ratifying decisions rendered 
at emergency meetings. 

  
(3)    Authority to act upon routine Board matters but necessary for timely dispatch may be  
delegated to the Chairman.  Actions taken under the provisions of this subsection shall be 
ratified at the next regular meeting of the Board. 

  
f.          Executive Sessions. 
   

Executive session of the Board shall be conducted in accordance with Chapter 39, Section 
23A, Massachusetts General Laws. 
 

a. Executive session will be listed as a topic for discussion on meeting notice, 



PROVINCETOWN BOARD OF SELECTMEN RULES OF PROCEDURE 
 

 2   

including as much detail about the purpose for the executive session as possible 
without compromising the purpose for which it is called.  

 
b. The Board will be convened in open session first.  

 
c. Chair publicly announced the purpose for executive session, citing one or more of 

the 10 purposes found at  G.L. c. 30A, § 21(a). 
 

1) For Executive Session Purposes 3, 6, and 8: Chair publicly will state that 
having the discussion in open session would have a detrimental effect on 
the public body’s negotiating position, bargaining position, litigating 
position, or ability to obtain qualified applicants.  

 
d. Chair will state all subjects that may be revealed without compromising the purpose 

for which the executive session was called.  
 

e. Chair will state whether Board will adjourn from the executive session, or will 
reconvene in open session after the executive session.  

 
f. A majority of members of the Board must vote by roll-call to enter into executive 

session. 
 

g. Documents in Meeting Packets for Executive Sessions will be distributed only in 
paper copy.  

 
h.     Executive Sessions relating to “strategy with respect to litigation” shall be scheduled 

at 5 p.m., followed by regular business at 6 p.m. whenever possible. 
 

g.           Time of Meetings. 
  

(1)               All Board Meetings shall normally be scheduled to commence promptly at 6:00 
 P.M., and terminate not later than 11:00 P.M. In the event, however, official business 
remains to be transacted at the scheduled adjournment time, the Board may vote to suspend 
this requirement under the provisions of Section 7 of these procedures. 
  
(2)               Unfinished business remaining at the scheduled or alternate adjournment time 
shall appear on the agenda of the next regular meeting. 
  
(3)   Any Board Member who expects to be absent from a scheduled Board Meeting, or 
delayed for more than one hour shall notify the Chairman in advance of the scheduled 
meeting. 

  
h       Meeting Packet: Meeting Notice, Agenda and Documents 
           

1) The  Meeting Packet will include  
 

a. Notice contains the date, time, and location of the meeting.  
 

b. If the meeting is a joint meeting of several public bodies, the names of all bodies 
meeting are to be listed. 
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c. The notice contains all of the topics that the chair reasonably anticipates will be 
discussed at the meeting. The topics are to be sufficiently specific to reasonably 
advise the public of the issues to be discussed at the meeting, 

 
d. The notice is printed in a legible, easily understandable format.  

 
e.  The date and time that the notice is posted is conspicuously recorded on the notice.  

 
f. All Documents to be reviewed by the Selectmen in the meeting.  

  
2) Meeting Packet of all scheduled meetings of the Board, except as precluded by Section 

2f, above, shall be filed with the Town Clerk at least forty-eight hours (excluding 
Saturdays, Sundays and Holidays) in advance of the meeting for posting on the official 
Town Website. 

 
3) Copies of the Meeting Packet shall be made available to members of the media and the 

general public on the Town Website.  The Meeting Packet may be removed from the 
Town Website only after a majority vote of the Selectmen.  

 

 
SECTION 3. AGENDA FOR REGULAR MEETING 
 
a. The format for agendas for regular meetings shall be: 

  
1.  Consent Agenda 
2.  Public Hearing 
3.  Public Statements 
4.  Selectmen Statements 
5.  Joint Meetings/presentations 
6.  Appointments 
7.  Requested agenda items 
8.  Town Manager's Report 
9.  Minutes 
10. Closing Statements 

 
 

Note:  The Board grants discretion to the Chair in setting the order of the “requested 
Agenda Items”, such that public requests always precede staff requests, but exceptions 
may be made when the staff requests require very short amounts of time.  The Board also 
requests we avoid using the category “preliminary matters”. 

  
b. The agenda of a public meeting of the Board of Selectmen shall provide for statements by 

members of the public no later than the second item on the agenda (By-Laws of the Town of 
Provincetown, Sect. 4-2-2). 

  
c. Agenda Items submitted from Selectmen - Items for placement on the Agenda from a Board 

Member and/or Town Manager should be in writing to the Chair, stating the subject matter, 
and a concise statement as to the essence of the subject matter. 

 
d. Agenda items must be received by the Chair or Secretary to the Board of Selectmen at 
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the start of the Agenda Setting Meeting as listed on the Selectmen’s Calendar. 
 -OR- 

e.  Requested by a Selectman at a Public Meeting to be placed on the subsequent agenda. 
 
 f.          Agendas for special and emergency meetings may be modified by the Chairman to   
            conform to the purpose(s) for which such meetings are called. 
  

  
SECTION 4. PROCEDURES DURING MEETING  
 
a.               Proceedings during meetings shall normally be governed by Roberts Rules of Order except 

as modified by these procedures. 
  
b.             When deemed necessary and appropriate, the Chairman may offer a motion, or second a 

motion. 
  
c.            No person shall address a public meeting of the Board without permission of the   
            Chairman or other designated presiding officer. 
  
d.            Items, which appear on the meeting agenda, shall be considered as properly before the  

Board of Selectmen without benefit of a specific motion to that effect.  However, any 
Member of the Board may reserve the right to move that an agenda item be stricken from 
the agenda. Such a motion, if made, shall be subject to the actions of the other Members of 
the Board as would be appropriate to action on routine motions 

  
e. The Board of Selectmen may respond to speakers under public statements providing a 

majority of the board members present vote to do so.  The board may take action on issues 
brought before the board in Public or Selectmen Statements, if it is of a nature not deemed 
to require being placed on a subsequent agenda. 

 
f. Limit Public Statements to a total of sixty (60) minutes.  Each public speaker is limited  
 to five (5) three (3) minutes speaking time. 
 
 g.         The Chairman should rotate from meeting to meeting the order in which the Selectmen    
            make their statements.  
 

  
SECTION 5. PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURES   
  
Preliminary Procedures 
  
1.  Proponents and opponents must set up any displays or graphic presentations prior to the 

actual start of the hearing. 
  
2. Principal speakers must identify themselves to the Chair prior to the start of the hearing. 
  
3.  Copies of the hearing materials from Proponents/Opponents/Staff will be posted (or 

distributed) prior to the start of the hearing.  Ideally all materials should appear in the BoS 
Selectmen’s meeting packet as posted by the Town Clerk. 

 
4.  The Chair will announce time limits, if any, for each section of the public hearing.  
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Hearing Format 
 
PRESENTATION: Proponent 
1) Questions ON THE PRESENTATION: Board of Selectmen 
 
2) Report and/or Recommendation from Staff 
 
3) Public Comments: 
 a)  Proponents 
 b)  Opponents 
 c)  Proponents and Opponents can be taken together at the discretion of the Chair. 
 d)  Written comments will be read into the record, eliminating comments from any  
       proponent/opponent who gave spoken public comments.  Written comments may be 
       summarized at the discretion of the Chair. 
 
4) Rebuttal or Answers to questions raised:  Proponents and Opponents. 
 
5) Closed to Public Comment. 
 
6) Board of Selectmen Discussion and Staff Recommendations. 
 
7) Vote.  
 
  
SECTION 6. MINUTES OF MEETINGS 
 
a.            The proceedings of all Board meetings shall be recorded by cassette recording devices.   

Tape recordings or videotape may not be used as a permanent record of meetings.  Written 
minutes must be prepared as outlined in Section 6b.  Once minutes have been prepared and  
approved, the tape and/or video may be erased and re-used for another meeting.  Until it is 
erased, however, it is a public record (unless it is a tape or video of an executive session), 
which must be made available for inspection and copying upon request. 

  
b1        Written minutes of Board meetings shall be prepared in an abbreviated form; however, as  
 a minimum, the written minutes shall record time and date of meetings, names of  
 Board Members present and voting, names of Town personnel attending, and names of  

Members of other Town Boards, Committees and Commissions attending the meeting, a 
summary of the discussions on each topic; a list of documents and other exhibits used 
at the meeting.1  The record of exact motions made and votes taken shall be included in 
the written minutes. Written minutes shall not include verbatim or otherwise lengthy 
record of discussion on agenda items. 

  
b2        Written minutes should be printed on both sides of the paper they are printed on. (To  

                                                 
 



PROVINCETOWN BOARD OF SELECTMEN RULES OF PROCEDURE 
 

 6   

 conserve paper and archive space.) 
  
c. Written minutes shall be prepared as expeditiously as possible to allow the Board to act 

upon them at a subsequent regular meeting.  Following the Board's approval, the written 
minutes shall be filed with the Town Clerk and become a permanent and official record of 
meetings. 

  
d. Executive Session minutes will be written by the Vice Chairman.  Minutes are to include 

motions made, actions taken thereon and a record of the roll call vote(s).  
  
e.          Minutes of Executive Sessions shall remain in the permanent possession of the Secretary 
  to the Board, in a secure place, and shall not be released unless authorized by a  
  majority vote of the Board taken in open session, or upon an order issued by a court of  
  law. 
  
SECTION 7. SUSPENSION OF PROCEDURES 
 
These standing procedures may be suspended by an affirmative majority vote of the Board 
Members present and voting. 
  
SECTION 8. RECONSIDERATION OF VOTES 

 
Any vote taken may be reconsidered without limitations to time, given upon a proper motion before 
the Board and a favorable majority vote of the members present and voting, providing that the 
Selectman making the reconsideration motion voted in the majority on the original motion. 
 
SECTION 9. REVIEW OF STANDING PROCEDURE 
 
These standing procedures shall be reviewed annually, following the normal reorganization of each 
new Board of Selectmen, or, more often if necessary and dictated by changes in the Board's 
composition if occurring prior to the normal electoral process. 
  
SECTION 10. AMENDMENTS TO STANDING PROCEDURES 
  
a.               These standing procedures may be amended by a majority vote of the members present and 

voting at a regular meeting provided, however, that the proposed amendment has been 
submitted to the Board of Selectmen’s secretary and the Board of Selectmen in writing at 
least one week prior to the date the amendment is to be voted upon. 

  
b. An amendment shall be construed to mean any addition of a new procedure or deletion or 

modification of an existing procedure. 
  

SECTION 11. EFFECTIVE DATE 
  

These standing procedures are effective May 22, 1995. 
   
SECTION 12. DISTRIBUTION 
 
 

A copy of these procedures will be provided to each newly elected Selectman.  
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        THE HONORABLE BOARD OF SELECTMEN 
  

Tom Donegan, Chairman 
  

      Erik Yingling, Vice Chair    Cheryl Andrews  
      Robert Anthony      Raphael Richter               
  

              Mary Timmons, Secretary Loretta Dougherty 
     June 23, 2014 June 22, 2015 



  

Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST 

Monday, June 22, 2015   

TOWN MANAGER SEARCH MATTERS 
 
Requested by:  Acting Town Manager David Gardner       Action Sought:  Discussion  

Proposed Motion(s) 

Discussion Dependent – votes may be taken. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Additional Information 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Action  

Motion Second Yea Nay Abstain Disposition 

      

 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 
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Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST 

Monday, June 22, 2015   

OTHER  
  Requested by:  Acting Town Manager David Gardner       Action Sought:  Discussion  

Proposed Motion(s) 

Discussion Dependent – votes may be taken. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Additional Information 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Board Action  

Motion Second Yea Nay Abstain Disposition 

      

 

 ________________________________________________________________________ 
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Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST 

Monday, June 22, 2015   

MINUTES OF BOARD OF SELECTMEN’S MEETINGS 
 Requested by:   BOS Secretary                       Action Sought:  Approval 

Proposed Motion(s) 

Move that the Board of Selectmen approve the minutes of: 
 
January 6, 2015 (Budget Meeting) [  ] as printed [  ] with changes so noted 
 
March 23, 2015 (Exec. Session Open) [  ] as printed [  ] with changes so noted 
 
April 27, 2015 (Exec. Session Open) [  ] as printed [  ] with changes so noted 
 
May 11, 2015 (Exec. Session Open) [  ] as printed [  ] with changes so noted 
 
May 13, 2015 (Exec. Session Open) [  ] as printed [  ] with changes so noted 
 
May 22, 2015 (Exec. Session Open) [  ] as printed [  ] with changes so noted 
 
May 26, 2015 (Exec. Session Open) [  ] as printed [  ] with changes so noted 
 
June 8, 2015 (Exec. Session Open) [  ] as printed [  ] with changes so noted 
 
 
    

Additional Information 

 
See attached minutes. 
 
 

Board Action 

Motion Second Yea Nay Abstain Disposition 

      

 

 
  ____________________________________________________________________________ 
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Provincetown Board of Selectmen 
AGENDA ACTION REQUEST 

Monday, June 22, 2015   

CLOSING SELECTMENS STATEMENTS 
Administrative Updates 
 Requested by:  Acting Town Manager David Gardner               Action Sought:  Discussion 

Proposed Motion(s)  

  Motions may be made and votes may be taken. 

Robert Anthony 

Raphael Richter 

Erik Yingling 

Cheryl Andrews 

Tom Donegan       
 

Additional Information 

A. Reading of Proclamations previously approved by the BOS on June 8, 2015: 
Proclamation to Declare June 15, 2015, as David W. Dunlap Day – Author of Building 
Provincetown by Historical Commission; Proclamation to Declare June 18, 2015, as 
Josephine & Salvatore Del Deo Day (Seniors of the Year), and Proclamation to 
Congratulate David McGlothin, as being named the Massachusetts 2015 History 
Teacher of the Year. 

B. Letters of Thanks to Members of Boards and Committees not Being Reappointed or 
with Terms Ending for Fiscal Year 2015. 
 

Board Action   

Motion Second Yea Nay Abstain Disposition 

      

 

__________________________________________________________________________ 
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